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PADDYTOWN	RESIDENTS	
	
1779,	John	Kilpatrick,	warranted	land	1794	
												Patrick	McKnight,	in	1790	census	listed	next	to	James	McMillan	
												Dan	McIntire	
1780,	Richard	Pinkerton,	warranted	land	1797	
												Daniel	McCarty	
												Patrick	Conner,	warranted	land	1810	
												James	Conner,	warranted	land	1793	
1783,	Amos	Johnston,	warranted	land	1786	
												Archibald	McElmoyl	
1785,	James	McMillan	
												Alexander	McClintock,	warranted	land	1787	
1786,	John	Hammel,	warranted	land	1789	
1787,	John	Cunningham,	non	resident	who	paid	taxes	on	land	
1788,	James	Campbell,	
												Joseph	Biggs,	warranted	land	1800	
												Jonathan	Woodside,	warranted	land	1793	
												John	Wright	warranted	land	1788	
1790,	James	Wright,	warranted	land	1814	
												James	and	Edward	Lafferty,	warranted	land	
1794,	land	warranted	by	Robert	Philson	
1796,	John	Cunningham,	warranted	land	1837	
												William	McCloud,	warranted	land	1796	
												Thomas	Bayes	
												Patrick	Nelson,	married	daughter	of	James	McMillan	adjoins	John	Drury	
1797,	Bernard,	Edward	and	Francis	Connelly	
1798,	James	Hanna,	
												James	Mc	Neill,	warranted	land	1798	
												Jehu	Brooke	Jones,	
												Charles	Durning,	warranted	land	1797	
												Henry	Crossen,	adjoined	Woodside	
1800,	Ezekial	Lee	
												Stoddard	Anderson,	b.	Ire.	1770-1857	
												Shaphet	Dwire	
	
	
	
Other	Irish	names	in	Turkeyfoot	and	Addison	Townships,	
Mitchell,	Drury,	Rowan,	Carney,	Donely,	McLean,	McGinnis,	Morris,	Briggs,	McNare,	
Skinner,	Tannehill,	Woodmancy,	Ross,	Ogg,	Hare,	Holliday	
	
	
	
	
EARLY	RESIDENTS	OF	PADDYTOWN	



1768	Steel	survey		
Ezekial	HICKMAN	died	1779	
1779	
John	KILPATRICK	
John	McLEAN	
Widow	NESBET	(of	John,	land	1774)	
Patrick	McNIGHT	
Dan	McINTIRE	
1780	
Richard	PINKERTON	
Daniel	McCARTY	
James	CONNER,	Patrick	CONNER	
1783	
Amos	JOHNSTON	
1785	
James	McMILLAN	
Alexander	McCLINTOCK,	John,	and	Robert	
John	BROOKE	land	warrant	
1786	
John	HAMMEL	
1787	
John	CUNNINGHAM	
John	CLARK	(land	1774)	
1788	
James	CAMPBELL	
Joseph	BIGGS	
Jonathan	WOODSIDE	
John	WRIGHT	(James	land	1814)	
1790	
William	McCLOUD	
					
1792,	Mrs.	Catherine	PATTON	Younkin,	of	Frederick					
1794,	Cornelius	REILEY	land	warrant	
Joseph	LAFFERTY	land	warrant	
Robert	PHILSON	land	warrant	
1797,	Bernard	CONNELLY,	Francis	and	Edward		
1798,	James	B.	HANNA	
1798,	James	McNEILL	(also	Hector	land	of	1786)	
	
Widow	WILKENS,	of	Peter		
Thomas	BAYES,	John	Bayes,	Jewel	Bayes	
Ezekial	LEE,	Charles	DURNING,	Jehu	Brooke	JONES,	Shaphet	DWIRE,									
Henry	CROSSEN,								
Stoddard	ANDERSON,	John	DRURY,		
Daniel	MARTIN	adjoins	Hammell	1798	
		



			
Irish	names	from	the	Turkeyfoot	area,	showing	the	influx	after	the	War	of	
Independence.	
1779,	McAnary	
1780,	Plunket	
1781,	Donahue	
1783,	McElmoyl	
1785,	Ogg	
Porter	
McCallum	
Price	
Brown	
Collins	
1786,		Anderson	
Durney	
Devine	
Huey	
James	
Laughlin	
Morrow	
Morton	
McCartney	
McClachey	
White	
Penrod	
1787,	Mathews	
Woodmancy	
Barney	
1788	Bradley	
Birmingham	
Brady	
Donnelly	
Martin	
McGinnis	
	
Also,	
McNare	
Skinner	
Tannehill	
Rowen	
Mitchell	
Close	by….	
Lufborough,	Rush,	
Leech,	King,	
Drake,	Green,	
Briggs,	Rose	



INFORMATION	about	the	RESIDENTS	OF	PADDYTOWN	
	
Ezekial	HICKMAN	
	
The	stream	called	Hickman’s	Run,	bisects	the	heart	of	Paddytown.	It	is	named	after	
the	early	settler	Ezekial	Hickman,	from	Captain	Steele’s	1768	list	of	Turkeyfoot	
squatters	on	Indian	lands.	He	was	born	in	1725,	from	Frederick,	Maryland,	and	died	
27	April	1779.	He	was	married	to	Elizabeth	Trammell.	He	served	in	the	War	of	
Independence,	under	Captain	Samuel	Miller,	in	the	8th	Regiment.	He	had	at	least	one	
son	Joshua	born	1766,	who	died	in	Indiana	in	1842.	
The	name	Hickman	has	been	long	established	as	a	surname	in	County	Clare,	Ireland.	
	
	
Catherine	PATTON	Younkin.	
The	name	Patton	means	little	Patrick.	
	
She	was	born	1771,	in	Pennsylvania,	according	to	the	1850	Census.	That	would	
make	her	18	or	19	when	she	married	Frederick	Younkin,	circa	1790.	Her	first	child	
was	born	1791,	or	in	1792,	when	Frederick	was	first	listed	as	paying	tax	at	
Turkeyfoot	Township,	Bedford	County.	
	
	According	to	the	Census	there	were	no	Pattons	in	Bedford	County,	in	1790,	nor	
were	there	any	Pattons	in	Tinicum,	Bedminster,	or	Haycock	Township	of	Bucks	
County,	where	Frederick	Younkin	came	from.	
	
	The	only	known	Patton	from	this	time	period	was	an	Irish	John	Patton,(b.1793)	
who	declared	his	citizenship	in	1808,	at	Somerset.	He	founded	the	newspaper	The	
Somerset	Whig,	in	1810.	He	worked	for	a	time	with	his	brother	Thomas	who	sold	his	
interest	in	the	newspaper	John	and	Jacob	Glessner	in	1829.	John	was	a	graduate	of	
Trinity	College	of	Dublin,	Ireland,	and	died	in	1836	at	Somerset.		
	
From	obit.	of	Mrs.	Susan	(Michael)	Sanner		Daughter	of	John	Patton	(b.	1793),	one	of	
two	English	brothers,	who	came	to	this	country	as	printers	and	bookbinders	and	
were	men	of	more	than	ordinary	intelligences.		They	established	a	book	printing	
office	here,	which	they	conducted	with	marked	success	until	1803	when	James	
removed	to	Uniontown,	where	he	established	the	Genius	of	Liberty,	a	weekly	
newspaper.	John	remained	in	Somerset	and	a	few	years	later,	or	about	1812	
established	the	Somerset	Whig,	which	he	edited	with	(s?)	ability	up	until	the	time	of	
his	death.	

	
Catherine	Patton	Younkin’s	home	farm	was	bought	from	James	McMillan.	James	
warranted	this	plot	of	158	acres	in	1786.	After	buying	this	from	McMillan	the	
Younkin’s	had	it	surveyed	in	1811.	Another	parcel	of	124	acres	-	which	adjoined	the	
158	acres	on	the	south	-	was	purchased	from	Amos	Johnston,	in	1807.	Johnston	had	
warranted	this	property	in	1786.	The	Younkin	farm	was	at	the	northern	edge	of	the	



area	that	became	known	as	Paddytown.	It	remains	in	the	Younkin	family	to	this	day.	
Catherine’s	remains	are	buried	on	the	farm	next	to	Frederick.		

	
	
Catherine	and	Frederick	had	11	children;	
Colonel	John	Calvin,	married	the	Irish	immigrant	Kathleen	Jane	Connelly,	of	Barney	
and	Elizabeth.	They	moved	to	near	Agency,	Iowa.	
Christina	Dull	
Elizabeth	“Betsy”	Younkin	
Magdalena	Younkin	
Frederick	F.	
Catherine	Lehmer	
Sarah	“Sally”	Weimer	King		
Nancy	Younkin	
Margaret	Rebecca	“Peggy”	Pringey	(my	ancestor)	
Moses	Younkin		
	
	
	
	
Catherine	PATTON	Younkin		 	
	
Born	in	Pa.	1771	–	1854	
She	married	ca.	1790	Frederick	Younkin,	born	15	Oct.	1763,	died	1843	
At	Bedminster	Twp.	Bucks	Co.	Pa.	
Son	of	Johannes	Heinrich	and	Catharina	Scherer	
1786	Frederick	is	single	on	tax	list	for	Haycock	Twp.	Bucks	Co.	
Frederick’s	father	died	in	1787	
Frederick	sold	his	interest	in	the	family’s	farm	and	Mill	at	Tinicum	Twp.	to	his	
brother	Rudolf.	
	Tinicum,	Haycock	and	Bedminster	Townships	are	located	40	miles	north	of	
Philadelphia	around	Nockamixon	Lake	today.	
Circa	1788	Fredrick	was	married	the	first	time	to	Maria	Barbara	Dieter	
Circa	1789	Frederick	Jr.	was	born	
Frederick’s	first	wife	Maria	Barbara	died.	
1789,	June	9th,	Jacob	“Yonken”	paid	10	pounds	in	Penn	Certificates	for	100	acres	of	
Turkeyfoot	land	at	Philadelphia,	this	is	the	same	date	as	the	warrant	of	217	acres	
that	was	surveyed	the	2nd	of	May	1794,	in	Turkeyfoot	Township.	
	1790	Census	records	show	no	Pattons	in	Bucks	County	
	Ralph	(Rudolph)	Yuncan	at	Bucks	Co.	
	1790,	No	Pattons	at	Bedford	County	(Somerset	County	was	established	in	1795	out	
of	Bedford	County)	
Michael	(John)	and	Jacob	Yuncan	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Bedford	Co.	
About	1790	Frederick	was	married	to	Catherine	Patton.	
1791,	first	child	John	Calvin	Younkin,	was	born	to	Frederick	and	Catherine	
1792,	Frederick	appeared	for	the	first	time	on	the	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list		



	 125	acres			2	cows				2	horses	
1792?		Frederick	purchased	158	acres	from	James	McMillan,	which	was	warranted	
by	McMillan	in	1786.	Frederick	had	this	land	surveyed	in	1811.	
1798,	Frederick	on	Federal	tax	list	adjoining	land	of	Amos	Johnston.	
1807,	Frederick	purchased	124	acres	from	Amos	Johnston	who	had	warranted	this	
land	in	1786.	
Frederick	was	a	distiller	and	a	shoemaker	along	with	farming.	
1801			Fred.	Younkin														150a.			30cl.																		2h									3c									house	
1807	 Fred.	Younkin		 150a.	 40cl.	 Distill.	2h	 3c	 house	
1808	 Fred	Younkin		 150a.	 55cl.	 2	stills	2h	 3c	 house	
1810	 Fred.	Younkin															150a.	 55cl.	 Still.	 3h	 3c	 house	
1839				Fred.	Younkin													150a.			75cl.																																4c									house	
1843				Fredrick	Senior	died.	
1850	Ag.	Census	Frederick	Jr.	100	acres	cleared	57	acres	unimproved	
2	horses,	10	milk	cows,	5	beef	cattle,	20	sheep,	8	pigs	
100	bushels	of	Wheat,			65b.	Rye,			400b.	Oats,			40	lbs.	Wool,	80b.	Irish	Potatoes,	
100b.	Buckwheat,		1,300	lbs	of	Butter,	10	tons	of	Hay	
	
Joseph	Rhoads	PRINGEY	married	Margaret	Younkin	circa	1833.	
They	lived	on	the	124	acres	Frederick	Younkin	purchased	from	Amos	Johnston	and	
another	73	acres	that	Joseph	Pringey	patented	in	1839,	which	was	just	east	of	the	
original	124	acre	tract.	By	1847	Joseph	and	Margaret	moved	to	the	northern	edge	of	
Preston	County	(West)	Virginia,	north	of	Bruceton	Mills.	
1835,	124a.		75acl.	1h	1c	house	
1839,	124a.	75c.	2h	2c	house	
1840	Census,	Joseph	R.	Pringey	is	listed	next	to	his	brother	George	and	Hugh	
Connelly		
1841,	130a.	75cl.	3h	5c	house	
1844,	124a.	1h	5c	house	
	
	
	
CONNELLY	
	
The	three	Connelly	brothers	arrived	to	Paddytown	in	1797.	Francis	soon	sold	out	to	
his	brothers	and	moved	to	Maryland,	then	Ohio.	Edward	sold	his	interest	in	the	
Paddytown	farm	to	his	brother	Barney	and	moved	to	Ohio	in	the	1820s.	
	
EDWARD	moved	to	Ohio	with	Francis.	His	only	known	child	James	C.	died	at	
Petersburg	in	October	1830.	
FRANCIS	born	15	April	1761,	Co.	Antrim,	Ireland,	died	1850s	Walnut	Twp.	Fairfield	
County,	Ohio,	after	living	in	Maryland	for	a	time.		
He	married	Margaret	Quinn	Connelly	b.	1762.	
Children	of	Francis	and	Margaret;	

A. Mary	Ann,	b.	ca.	1805	Md.		
							married	Lewis	Shircliff,	by	1830	Census	moved	to	Ohio	



B. Rosanna,	b.	ca.	1800	Md.		
married	Francis	Shircliff,	by	1830	Census	moved	to	Ohio		

C. Edward	Connelly,	Attorney,	b.	ca.	1797,	d.	21	February	1863,	Iowa	City,	Iowa	
m.	Mary	Craighead	 				m.	2nd	Mehitable	Barker	Brown	at	Utica,	Ohio	
	

							D.	BERNARD	C.	JR.	born	15	Feb.	1794	–	died	5	Aug.	1848,	Paddytown	
	 m.	Margaret	Ankeny	Sanner	ca.	1819	
	 Children	of	Bernard	and	Margaret;		

	1.	Stepson	Michael	Sanner	b..	21	April	1810	d.	15	April	1888	
	 					m.	Susan	Patton	1846,	father	Jacob	on	1811	tax	list	had	a	store	
	 2.	Rosanna	b.	22	Aug.	1819	
	 				m.	John	Vought,	moved	to	Ohio	
													3.	Hugh	H.	b.	22	April	1821		d.	1874		Fayette	Co.	
	 					m.	Narcissa	Jane	ca.1849	
					 4.	Dr.	Charles	H.	b.	22	Dec.	1823		d.	1861	Redwing	MN	
	 					m.	Mary	Hagans	14	June	1849	
	 5.	Francis	M.	b.	21	Jan.	1826	d.	by	1886	at	Marengo?	Iowa	
	 6.	Dr.	Edward	A.	b.	26	Feb.	1828	d.	25	July	1876	
	 					m.	Mary	Huston,		
	 7.	Harriet	E.	b.	3	Jan	1833	d.	1897	Somerset,	Pa.	
			 	 She	was	handicapped	some	how.	
	
BERNARD		“BARNEY	the	Tailor”	born	1766,	Carrickfergus,	Co.	Antrim,	Ireland,	died	
4	Feb.	1857,	Agency,	Wapello	County,	Iowa,		
married	Elizabeth	Eglinton	b.	1769	Ireland,	d.	1836	March	4,	Paddytown.	
Children	of	Barney	and	Elizabeth;	
1.	“Janey”	Kathleen	Jane	b.	5	June	1791,	Ireland,	died	Modena,	Missouri,		
																	m.	John	C.	Younkin,	
2.	James,		b.	1796,		d.	ca.	1845	at	Petersburg,	Pa.	m.	Maria	Hugus,	Dec.	1826	
3.	Agnes	Nancy	b.	1799	May	16	d.	7	Sept.	1878	Agency	?	Iowa,		
																	m.	John	Pinkerton	and	moved	to	Ohio.	
4.	Elizabeth	b.	3	Jan.	1802	d.	6	May	1827	Paddytown,		
																	m.	Isaac	Mendenhall,	a	Methodist	minister	
5.Mary	b.	30	July	1805	d.	May	1876	Onawa,	Iowa	
														m.	Henry	L.	Holbrook	
6.	Hugh	b.	27	Aug.	1809	d.	16	July	1891	Agency,	Iowa	
	 m.	Martha	King	
7.	Bernard	A.	b.	21	Sept.	1812	d.	17	Aug.	1854	drowned	W.	Va.	
	 m.	Mary	Barley	
8.	Charles	b.	16	June	1815,	(7	Barney	letters	written	to	him	1844)	
	
9.	2nd	Hugh	b.	1	June	1807	d.	1	Sept.	1808	Paddytown	
	
3	Nov.	1829		$100,000	was	appropriated	for	National	Road	improvement.	
						(regarding?	James	Connelly)	
	



							James	Connelly	Petersburg	Postmaster	7	Aug.		1832	to	July	1835	
	
Isaac	Hugus	was	brother	of	Maria	Hugus	Connelly	of	Michael	
	
What	was	James	Connelly’s	highest	property	value	with	inflation?	
	
James	Connelly	was	a	witness	FOR	McClintocks	in	Hanna	Fight	
	
“Alexander”	Connelly	recorded	from	cemetery	stone	during	WPA	1934.	
	
James	Connelly	killed	himself?		Would	explain	the	silence	surrounding	his	death	
by	son	Henry	and	close	neighbor	Moses	Ross	
	
Dr.	Edward	Connelly	self	medicated	himself	to	a	permanent	sleep	on	the	train?	

	
	
KILPATRICK,	founder	of	Paddytown	
	
John	1735	-1834			born	in	Northern	Ireland 
Jane	Eston	1747	–	1821	married	before	1777 
Both	buried	at	Paddytown	–	Younkin		Cemetery 
Wife	was	probably	sister	to	Mary	“Mollie”	Eston	married	to	Alexander	McClintock 
 
Private	in	Captain	James	Rogers	Company,	of	Colonel	Tim	Green	Associators,	
Hanover	Rifle	Battalion,	York	County,	6	June	1776. 
 
land	adjoined:		John	McMillan,	William	Pinkerton,	James	Conner	(later	Sanner	land),	
John	K.	McMillan,	Jehu	Brooke	Jones,	Daniel	McCarty. 
 
Daughters:	 
1787	–	1852		1.	Sarah	m.	William	Rush	(took	over	John	Kilpatrick’s	farm) 
1777	–	1854		2.	Nancy	m.	John	McMillan 
1770	-	1844			3.	Jane	m.	Jehu	Brooke	Jones	to	Ohio	(left?)	to	Perry	Co.	OH	about	1815 
			 													4.	Margaret	m.	John	Hammel	Jr.	(moved,	last	on	tax	list	1818) 
son? William	the	teacher? 
John	and	Jane	were	illiterate.	They	signed	with	a	mark	on	deeds. 
	 
1779	 180	acres,	first	time	listed	for	tax 
1783	 50	acres	 2	horses	 2	cattle	 4	sheep 
1784	 	 	 2	horses	 2	cattle	 2	sheep 
1790 
1794	 warrant	for	206	acres	Turkeyfoot	Twp. 
1796	 received	patent	for	206	acres 
1797	 600	acres	 50	cl.		 2horses	 4	horned	cattle	 1	house 
1802	 200a.	 60cl.	 1	house	 3h	 2c 
	 400a. 



1805	 600	 60	clear	 3	horses	 3	cows		 house 
1810	 600	 70	 	 4	 	 2	 	 house 
1811	 600	 50	 	 1	 	 2	 	 house 
1814 
1817	 Will	written,	Hugh	Connelly	witness,	land	to	William	Rush 
1818 
1819	 Residence	shown	on	map 
1820	 John	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp. 
1821	 wife	Jane	died	7	Sept. 
1823 
1826		 present 
1830	 Census	John	in	Wm.	Rush	household,	John	800	acres 
1834	 John	died	Dec. 
 
William 
1815	 William	teaching	at	a	Paddytown	residence 
1820	 William	at	Warton	Twp.	Fayette	Co.	27	to	45	yrs. 
1821	 “Kilpatrick”	Add.	Twp. 
1823	 present 
1824	 present 
1827	 William	school	teacher	Addison	Twp. 
1828	 Addison	Twp.	William		 
1830	 Aug.	22	William	died	at	Petersburg		according	to	Moses	Ross	diary 
1830	 Census	Addison	Twp.	William,	40	to	50	yrs. 
	 with	80	to	90	woman 
 
John	and	Jane	were	illiterate 
 
	
PINKERTON	
	
Richard	Sr.	born	1740	Northern	Ireland	–	died	circa	1816,	married	in	the	1760s	to	
Margaret	Wright,	born	1733	to	43,	died	1820	
	
Children	of	Richard	and	Margaret;	
William	1767	–	1845	
	 Sons	-Thomas,	Robert,	William	Jr.		
Benjamin,		1772	–	1845,	to	Washington	Co.	Pa.	
Richard	Jr.	1775	–	1860,	to	Wayne	Co.	Ohio	
Jane,		1779?	–	1850,	married	John	McClintock,	1777	–	1848,	of	Alex	and	Mary	“Mollie”	
Eston	
	
Matthew	1783	–	1831,	married	Sarah	Reed/Hanley	1782	-	1827	
	
Children	of	Matthew	and	Sarah;	
Rachel	1804	–	1891,	married	1823,	Samuel	Hinebaugh	1801	–	1883	



Margaret	1806	–	1845	Ohio,	married	1822	James	McMillan	1798	–	1870,	Ohio	
Charity	1808	–	1831,	married	Benjamin	Rhoads.	d.1831	
Sarah	1810	–	1880	WV,	married	Robert	Cunningham	1808	–	1889	
Jane	1813	–	1892,	married	Rudolf	Meyer	IV	1804	–	1874	
Nancy	1815	-	?,	married	Christian	Livengood	
Catherine	b.ca.	1820	lived	in	Allegheny	County	Md.	married	Adam	Swarner	
Matthew	b.1823	moved	to	Wayne	County,	Ohio	
James	M.	1824	–	1864,	moved	to	Wayne	County,	Ohio.	Killed	by	a	Confederate	sniper	
at	Burke	Station,	Va.	buried	at	Blairsville,	Ohio	
	
Matthew	Pinkerton,	Estate	Record	February	1834	
“Old	Place”	in	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	adjoining	Bernard	Connelly	and	Philson’s	large	tract,	
300	acres	100	acres	clear,	with	a	house	and	barn	with	two	orchards.	
Also,	150	acres,	adjoining	John	Drury	and	John	McClintock	and	others,	very	much	
dilapidated	and	decayed	and	altogether	unproductive.	
Estate	was	altogether,	”insufficient	to	pay	the	balance	of	the	debts	of	said	estate	and	
to	maintain	and	educate	the	minor	children	of	the	deceased.”	
	
1847	settlement?	Adjoining	Henry	F.	Younkin,	Bernard	Connelly,	William	Pinkerton,	
Jacob	Gerhart	and	others,	432	acres,	110	clear,	two	houses,	log	barn,	two	orchards,	
sugar	camp,	and	other	improvements.	
	
16	May	1801,	land	deed	(see	Connelly’s)	
Matthew	of	Addison	Twp.	to	Benjamin	of	Washington	Co.	Pa.	
100	acres	west?	side	of	Castleman’s	River	part	of	larger	tract	
patented	8	January	1800.	
	
16	May	1828		John	(of	Richard	Jr.)	of	Land	Twp.	Wayne	Co.	Ohio	
	 sold	259	acres	to	father	in	law	Bernard	Connelly	 		
1828	land	to	Bernard	Connelly	Sr.	by	1848	sold	to	Robert	Cunningham	
	
1840	Deed	to	Charles	Ogle,	shows	“milltract”	boundary	
	 Bernard	Connelly	
Copy	deed	with	mill	site	reference	
	
1808	–	1879	
William	the	Potter		1808	–	1879,	son	of	William	(of	Richard	Sr.)	
Born	1767	died	1847,	who	married	Sarah	
	
Interred	at	Pinkerton	Cemetery	
Matt.	Pinkerton	1	Jan.	1783	–	1831	March	4	
Sarah	Hanley	(or	Reed)	Pinkerton	1782	–	10	June	1827	
Rev.	War	Vet.	Jacob	Heimbaugh	1755	–	1816	
(Same	Heinbaugh	married	daughter	Rachel	of	Matthew	&	Sarah	Pinkerton)	
1804	-1895	of	Ft.	Hill)	
John	Brougher		1776	-1854	Sept.	30	



Eliz.	Shrock	Brougher		27	March	1816	–	Oct.	1851		
	
1781,	first	appearance	on	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list	
	
1790	U.S.	census	 3	M	16	+	yrs.	 1M	und.	16yrs.			3	females	
	
1790	 tax	list		Richard	 400acres	 Turk.	Twp.	
	
1796	 William	and	Richard	
	
1798	Fed.	Direct	Tax	
William	 200	 	 2	cabins	 	 Adjoins	John	McMillan	
	 	 $342.	Value					$42.			value	
Richard	 400a.	 	 1cabin	house		$17.	value	
	 	 $600	value	 1	barn	$100.	
	
1800				Benjamin					M	1	und	10				1	-26	to	45				F	1	und	10				1	16	to	26	
	 Wm.				M	1	und	10				1	10	to	16				1	26	-45				F	4	und	10			1		26	to	95	
	 Richard	 M	16	-26					F	16	to	26	
	 Rich	Sr.											M	1	und	10						2	16	–	26						1,	45+					1F,		16	to	26						
no	Females	45+	off	the	paper	couldn’t	see	it	
	
1801	
	 Pinkerton,	Wm.		 200		 30	 	 2	 	 2	 	 cabin	
	 Richard	 	 400	 40	 	 ____	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	 					“	 	 	 	26	 ____	 	 _____	 	 ____	 	 _____	
	 Richard	Jr.	 	 250	 ____	 	 1	 	 1	 	 _____	
	
1802	 Richard	Jr.		 250a.	 	 1h	 	 1c	
	 Richard	Sr.	 400a.	 		25cl.	
	 William	 200a.	 		30cl.	 1	house	 2h	 2c	
	
1805	
	 William		 	 200	 30	 	 2	 	 1	 	 house	
	 Richard	Sr.	 	 142	 30	 	 1	 	 _____	 	 house	
	 “ditto	Mathew	land”	 	26	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 _____	
	 Benjamin	 	 100	 15	 	 _____	 	 _____	 	 house	
	 John	 	 	 158	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	

Richard	Jr.	 	 250	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	

1810	 Census	
													Wm.			M	1	und	10				1,		16	to	26						1,	26	to	45	
	 Rich	Sr.	
	 Rich	Jr.	 M2	und	 1	-26	to	45	
	 Thomas	 M	16	to	26						no	F45+	copied		no	females	copied	off	paper	
	



1810	
	 Wm.	(two	Stills)	 200	 	40	 	 4	 	 2	 	 _____	
	 Richard	Sr.	 	 160	 	20	 	 1	 	 2	 	 ____	
	 Richard	Jr.	 	 250	 	25	 	 4	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 Benjamin	 	 100	 	10	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 John	 	 	 160	 	5	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 Matthew	 	 160	 	5	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	
1811	
	 Wm.	 	 200	 50	 4	 4	 cabin	
	 Thomas	 ___	 ___	 1	 1	 c	
	 Richard	Jr.	 250	 30	 4	 1	 c	
	 Matt.	 	 400	 50	 1	 ___	 c	
	
1815	
	 Richard	 	 	 ____	 ____	 1	 c	

Richard	Jr.	 	 259	 	35	 2	 3	 c	
Matt.	Removed		 400	 	50	 2	 1	 h	
Wm.	Removed		 200	 	45	 2	 3	 c	
Thomas	 	 	 ___	 1	 1	 cabin	
	

1819	 Matt.	 	 400	 35	 1	 2	 h	
	 Wm.	 	 200	 40	 2	 3	 c	
	 Thom.		 _____	 	 1	 1	 c	
	 Rich	 	 250	 50	 2	 3	 c	
	 		“	 	 	50	 __	 __	 __	 __	
	
1820				Census	
	 Richard			M	1	und10,	1,	16,18		4,	16	to	26		1	45+			F	1	und	10,			2,10-16	
	 Martha	 		M	2	und	10		1,	to	26		1	to	45,				1	45+,						F	5	und	10,				10	to	16	
	 Wm.				M	1	und	10		1	to	16,				1,	45+						F	2	und	10	

Thomas	 M	5	und	10	 1	,26	–	45	 	 F	1,		10	to	16	
John	 	 M		2	und	10	 		1	to	16,			1,	16	–	26,			F	3	und	10	,			2,	10	-16,	
		old	females	not	copied	

	
1821	 	
	 Thomas	Pinkerton	 ______	 _____	 	 1	horse	 2	cows		 cabin	
	 John	 	 	 295	 70	clear	 2	 	 4	 		 house	
	 Matthew	 	 400	 	50	 	 3	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 Richard	 	 250	 	50	 	 2	 	 4	 	 house	
	 William	 	 200	 	30	 	 1	 	 3	 	 cabin	
	
1825	 	
	 Wm.	Pinkerton	 214	 	40	 	 1	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 Matthew	 	 400	 	50	 	 1	 	 3	 	 house	
	 Matthew	 	 		50						______Sawmill	____	 	 ____	 	 _______	



	 John	 	 	 250	 	100	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	
1829	
	 Matt.		 	 	 	50	 		3	Sawyer	 0	 	 5	 	 cabin	
	 Wm.	 	 	 200	 40	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	
1830				Census	
	 Mathew				M	3	und	5				1	to	10			1	to	15				2		to	20			1,	20	to	30			1,	50	-60	
	 	 						F	1	5	to	10						2	10	to	15						2	–	15	to	20					1	20	to	30	
	 Wm.				M	1	–	15	to	20					1	–	20	to	30							1-	60	to	70	
	 	 F					1	–	5	to	10						1	–	15	to	20					1	–	50	to	60	
	
1831		Matthew	dec’d.													50	 	3		Gristmill	 _____	 	 ____	 	 cabin	
												Matth.		(old	place)	 300	 60	Sawmill	 _____	 	 ____	 	 _____	
	 William	 	 200	 40	 	 1	 	 3	 	 house	
	
1831??				(Check	this)	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		
														Matt.		 																										400a	 50	clear	 1	horse	 3	cows														house	
					 																																								50a	 sawmill	 _____	 	 _____	 	 _____	
															John	 																										250a.	_______	 	 _____	 	 ______	 	 ______	
	
1835	 William	 	 160	 10	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
	
1839	 William	 	 135	 20	 	 ___	 	 1	 	 ____	
	 William	Jr.		 	 160	 12	 	 1	 	 2	 	 cabin	
	 		“	 	 	 240	 ___	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	
1840	U.S.	Census	listed	by	location	
	 William			M	2	und.5				1	und.	10	 					1	und	15	 	 1	30	to	40	
	 	 F	2	und	5	 1	–	20	to	30	
Robert	Cunningham	
William	Pinkerton	
John	B.	West	(gravestone?)	
J.N.	Hartzel	
Rudolph	Meyers	
J.K.	McMillan	
	
1841	 Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 William	Sr.	 	 130	 20	 	 _______	
	 William	Jr.		 	 400	 12	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	
1844	 William	Sr.	 	 130	 ____	 	 1	 	 _____	 	 house	
	 William	Jr.	 	 400	 ___	 	 1	 	 1	 	 house	
	 Addison	Twp.		Matthew			1	cow							1	house	
	
1845			William	Sr.	died	



	
1848	 William	Pinkerton	Up.	Turk.	Twp.	
	
1850	 no	Pinkerton	listed	in	Agricultural	census	Upper	Turkeyfoot,	Twp.	
	
1850	Census	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
William	Pinkerton	 42	 M	 POTTER	 PA					b.ca	1808,	real	Estate	$400.	
Priscilla	 	 39	 F	 	 	 PA	
Josias	 	 	 18	 M	 Labourer	 PA	
Asa	 	 	 16	 M	 Labourer	 PA	
Sarah	 	 	 14	 F	 	 	 PA	
Elizabeth	 	 12	 F	 	 													PA	
Hesekiah	 	 11	 M	 	 													PA	
Enoch	 	 	 	8	 M	 																 PA	
Simpson	 	 	4	 M	 	 	 PA	
James	 	 	 	1	 M	 	 	 PA	
	
Daniel	Tresler		48	 	 	 	
James	Pinkerton			26			
John	Lichtliter		33	
Peter	Weimer		33	 	
	
	
1850	 Census	Addison	Twp.	Som.	Co.	
	 Matthew	Pinkerton		 33	
	 Mary	Pinkerton		 26	
	
1860		?	
	
Pinkerton	
OHIO,		Wayne	Co.		Paint	Twp	
1830	 John		 #075	
	 Richard		#074	
	
1840	 James	 #142	
	 Richard			#136	
	 Jacob	&	Reuban		E.	Union	Twp.		#167	
	
1850	 John		#65		(and	Nancy	Connelly)	
	 Richard		#88	
	 Matthew		#87	
	 Ezra	 #88	
	 Jacob		#423	E.	Union	Twp.	
	 Rudolph	Milton	Twp.		#270	
	
	



McMILLEN	
Mullen	means	mill	in	Gaelic.	
	
James	McMillan,	20	August	1735	–	1821	March	29,	was	indentured	to	Thomas	
McMillan,	his	brother,	in	Hanover	Township,	of	Chester	County,	later	Lancaster	and	
now	Dauphin	County	Pennsylvania.	He	is	listed	on	the	Chester	County	tax	records	
from	1750	to	1784.	At	15,	James	was	listed	as	a	weaver.	After	his	seven-year	
indenture	he	married	Eleanor	Wright,	26	Feb.	1735	–	November	1820,	the	daughter	
of	his	next-door	neighbor	James	Wright,	born	in	Ireland	in	1716	–	died	1764,	and	
wife	Margaret,	who	died	1793.	Reverend	Roan	married	James	and	Eleanor	at	the	
Paxtang	Presbyterian	Church,	on	7	May	1757.	(see	photos	of	Church)	Eleanor’s	
sisters	married	as	follows;	Margaret	to	William	Moore	1	June	1761,	Jane	married	Mr.	
Russell,	Jemima	married	William	Wharton,	and	Agnes	married	John	Malcolm.	All	of	
the	sisters	moved	to	WV	or	Va.	A	brother	William	was	killed	in	the	War	of	
Independence	and	there	may	have	been	another	brother	killed	in	the	war.	In	1784,	
Eleanor	and	James	were	listed	as	executors	of	her	brother	William’s	estate.	James	
McMillan	served	in	the	War	of	Independence	under	Captain	William	Allen	in	the	9th	
Battalion	of	the	Lancaster	County	Militia,	Hanover	Twp.	1780	and	1782.	Another	
record	shows	James	served	under	Captain	R.	Shanous,	First	Battalion,	called	up	11	
September	1777,	an	established	DAR	record.		
Anna	Wright	McMillan	was	the	mother	of	Eleanor	Bayes.	Thomas	Bayes	was	the	son	
of	Jewell	Stephen	Bayes.	His	grandfather	came	to	from	Va.	through	Md.	and	bought	
land	in	Middletown,	Bucks	County,	Pa.	in	1699	next	to	the	land	of	John	Jewell,-	no	
doubt	their	children	married.	
From	the	Biographical	review	for	Bedf.	And	Som.	Co.	1899,	pg	193	–	195,	
John	K.	McMillan	did	general	farming	and	operated	a	tannery.	Early	on	he	was	Whig	
and	became	a	staunch	Republican,	served	several	years	as	a	Post	Master,	eminent	in		
piety	and	an	active	member	of	the	Methodist	Church,	united	when	young.	His		
second	son	Jehu	learned	tanning	from	his	father	and	purchased	a	tannery	in	
Addison	Twp..	He	retired	from	this	after	turning	this	business	over	to	his	son	
Charles	R.	
A	Thomas	McMillan	who	came	from	Ballynacree	Co.	Antrim	Ireland	to	Pa.	with	his	
wife	Deborah	and	children.	Died	9	month	1753	at	burial	ground	of	Wellsville,	York	
Co.Pa.	
John	1764	–	1856,	was	a	Methodist	from	an	early	age	married	to	Nancy	Kilpatrick	of	
John.		
John	K.	was	the	eldest	son	of	John	and	Nancy.	
John	K.	was	Postmaster	1859	–	1870	(father	John	died	1856)	
John	K.	had	no	vats	or	leeches	and	took	large	chestnut	logs	and	made	troughs	in	
which	to	lime	bait	and	tan	his	hides.	Charles	R.	was	still	using	these	methods	in	1906.	
Brother	Samuel	married	Rachel	Pringey		
Jacob	R.	was	the	eldest	son	of	John	K.	and	second	wife	Mary	Rush.	
He	ran	a	tannery	and	was	elected	Justice	of	the	Peace	several	terms,	Associate	Judge	
of	Somerset	Co.	and	served	two	terms	as	a	member	of	Pa.	house	of	representatives.	
Charles	R.	McMillan	served	15	years	or	three	terms	as	Justice	of	Peace	and	was	
elected	tax	collector.	



	
James	McMillan		born	Northern	Ireland	or	Scotland,	30	Aug.	1735	–	died	March	
1821,	married	Eleanor	Wright	born	20	Feb.	1836,	died	November	1810	
Sons	Jonathan,	William	and	
	
John	McMillan,	b.	19	July	1764	–	d.	1	Feb.	1856	
married	25	March	1793,	Nancy	Kilpatrick	of	John		who	died	7	Sept.	1821	
Children	of	John	and	Nancy;	

1. John	Kilpatrick,	26	May	1795	d.	28	Sept.	1870,	m.	Mary	Rush	of	Jacob	
								m.	Sarah	Critchfield	
								m.	Clarissa	Williams	

							2.			James,	b.	19	Dec.	1798,	married	Margaret	“Peggy”	Pinkerton	
	

3.			Jane,	b.	30	Dec.	1800,	married	Patrick	Nelson	(1796	taxlist)	
(married	to	sister	of	James	b.	1764?)	

							
4. Eleanor	b.	23	July	1802,		m.	

	
5. William,	b.	24	Dec.	1804,	married	Rosanna	(Ream?)	

1860,	Moved	to	West	Liberty	area	in	Iowa	
Fence	post	invention	2	Apr.	1878	
Donated	land	for	South	Prairie	Methodist	Church	near	West	Liberty.	Ia.	
	

6. Samuel	Eston,	born	12	Nov.	1807,	married	Rachel	Pringey,	1814	–	1902,	
Samuel	died	29	Dec.	1895,	West	Liberty,	IA	
	1861	sold	McMillan	farm	at	Paddytown	and	moved	to	West	Liberty.	Iowa	
	

								7.		Sarah,	born	Oct.	1810,			m.	
	
							8.			Margaret,	born	25	Nov.	1813		m.					Lenhart	
	
							9.		Mary	born	15	April	1820	married	David	Philippi,			
													died	6	May	1838,	Milford	Twp.	
	
				10.		Thomas,	indicted	1841	for	counterfeiting	coins?	
	
1785				James	first	time	on	tax	list	
1790,			Census	
1792			John	McMulen,	Single		
1796,			James,	Weaver	
1797,			James,	300a.	
1798,			James,	Weaver	
1798	 James	McMillan	adjoined	land	of	Amos	Johnston,		300a.		$5.		Cabin	
	
1801	 James	Sr.	 	 ____	 ____	 	 ____	 2	house	
	 John	 	 	 285	 	40	 	 2	 3	 house	



	 James	Jr.	 	 212	 	17	 	 1	 3	 cabin	
	
1802				James	Jr.	212	a.		24	cl.			1	c.	
	 James	Sr.			1	h				2	c	
	 John			275a.			40	cl.			3h				2c	
	 William		1	cow	
	
1805	 James	Jr.	 	 200	 	30	 	 2	 3	 house	
	 James	Sr.		Weaver	 ____	 ____	 	 1	 1	 _____	
	 John	Esquire	 	 265	 	40	 	 2	 3	 house	
	 James	sold	his	land	to	Fred.	Younkin	
	
1808	 John	McMulin	Esqu.	 265a.	 40cl.	 2h	 4	cows		_______	
	
1810	 John	Esquire	J.P.	 265	 	40	 	 2	 3	 house	
										William,	(Shoemaker?)	307						____	 	 ____	 1	 _____	
	
1811	 John	Esquire	 	 265	 	40	 	 2	 5	 cabin	
	 William	 	 320	 Sawmill	 ___	 ___	 cabin	
	
1815	 John	Esquire	 	 265	 40	 	 2	 3	 house	
	 William	 	 Shoemaker	 	 ___	 ___	 ____	
	 Thomas		 	 ______	 ______	 	 _____	 1	 _____	
	
1819	 John	Esquire	 	 265	 	50	 	 1	 2	 house	
	
1820	 Census,	John	Sr.			John	H.	(K?)	16	-26,		James	to	45,		James	16	to	26	
	
1820				John	Esquire	 	 265	 40	 	 2	 3	 house	
	
1821			
										John	McMillan	Esquire	265	 40	 	 1	 3	 house	
	 John	K.	McMillan	 			1	 	1	Tanner,	 2	 1	 house?	Check	Cabin?	
	 James	died	1821	
	
1825			
									John	McMillan	Esquire	 265	 70	 	 ___	 1	 ____	
	 James	McMillan	 265	 70	 	 ____	 1	 cabin	
	 John	K.	McMillan	 	24	 24		Tanner,	 1	 3	 house	
	 	 	 	 200	 	60	 	 ____	 ____	 house	
1827	land	warranted	
	
1829	
	 James	McMillan	 397	 	50	 	 1	 1	 house	
	 John	K.	McMillan	 200	 70		Tanner,	 2	 3	 house	
	 	 “	 	 	17	 	17	Tanyard,	



									John	McMillan	Esquire			258	 	60	 	 3	 4	 house	
	 Thomas	McMillan	 ____	 _____	 	 ___	 1	 cabin	
	
1830	 Census,		John	Esq.	50	-60,		John	K.	30	-40,	Thomas	30	-40	
	
1831	 Thomas	 	 ____	 ____	 	 ____	 1	 cabin	
	 John	Esquire	 	 258	 	60	 	 3	 4	 house	
	 John	Jr.	 	 200	 	70	Tanner	 2	 3	 	house	
					 			“	 	 	 1	½	 1	1/2	 Tanyard	___	 ___	 ______	
	
1835	 Samuel	 	 ___	 ___	 	 ___	 2	 cabin	
	 John	Esquire	 	 258	 100		Justice	 3	 4	 house	
	 Thomas	 	 150	 	9	Grist,	Sawmill__	 ___	 cabin	
	 John	K.	Tanner		 200	 	60	 	 3	 4	 house	
	 “	(Hammel	place)	 250	 40	 	 ____	 ____	 _____	
	
1839	 Samuel	 	 _____	 ___	 	 3	 3	 cabin	
	 John	Esquire	 	 258	 	70	 	 0	 2	 house	
	 Thomas	(counterfeiter?)		Grist	&	Saw	Mill	(Pinkertons?)__	cabin	
	 (lost	land	in	1837	Panic?)	
	 John	K.	 	 200	 	60	 	 1	 1	 cabin	
	 		“	 	 	 1	½	 1	½		Tanyard	___	 ___	 ______	
	 		“	 	 	 150	 	60	 	 1	 1	 cabin	
	
1840	 Census,		John	Esq.	70	–	80,	Thomas	40	-50,	Sam	20	–	30,		(all	next	to	John	
Brook)	John	K.	next	to	William	Rush	
	
McMillan		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1841	
		Thomas	counterfeiter?	 150acres	 4	clear		G=SMill				1	horse	 ____	 cabin	
		Samuel	 	 	 ____	 	 ______	 		______	 							2	horses		2cows	 cabin	
		John	K.		 	 	 230	acres	 80	clear		Tanner		4	horses		6cows	 house	
				“	 	 	 	 250	 	 60	 _____	
John	Esquire,	J.P.	 	 250	 	 80	 _____	 	 _____	 2cows	house	
	
1844	
		Samuel	E.	(Eston?)	 	 _____	 	 ____	 _______	 											3	horses		3	cows	______	
		John	K.		 	 	 231	 	 ____	 _______	 											8	horses	6cows		house								
				“	 	 	 	 272	 	 ____	 ____	 	 ________________________	
John	Esquire	 	 	 250	 	 ____	 _______	 									________		2	cows			house	
			J.P.	
	
1848,	Tax	list	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
		John	K.	McMillan,	Tanner	
		Samuel	E.	McMillan	
		John	McMillan,	Esquire	



	
1850		Agricultural	Census	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
Samuel	McMillan	
100	acres	improved,	150	unimproved,	Cash	value	$1500.	
3	horses,		6	cows,		10	other	cattle,		20	sheep,	6	pigs,		$100.	Value	farm	implements	
60b.	wheat		60	b.	rye		60b.	Ind.	corn		200b.	oats		30lb.	wool	100b.	Irish	potatoes		50b.	
buckwheat		200	lb.	butter		10	tons	hay			9	lbs.	flax			1	lb.	flaxseed	
	
John	K.	McMillan	
100	acres	improved,		500	unimproved,	cash	value	$3000.			$200	farm	implements	
8	horses,		12	cows,		20	other	cattle,		20	sheep,		12	pigs,	
50b.	wheat,		100	b.	Rye,			100b.	Ind.	corn,		300b.	oats,	
50lbs.	wool,		100b.	Irish	potatoes,		60b.	buckwheat,	300lbs.	butter,		12	tons	hay,	
50	lbs.	flax,		8	lbs.	flaxseed,			200	lbs.	maple	sugar.	
	
tanning	business	info.	from	census?	
	 	
1861,	Samuel	sold	out	and	moved	to	West	liberty,	Iowa	
												William	moved	to	West	Liberty,	Iowa,	(time?)	
	
	
Leather	Tanning	
	
John	K.	McMillan	tanner	at	Paddytown,	circa	1819	–	1870?	
In	1906	near	the	A.J.	Case	farm.	Followed	by	tanner	Henry	Younkin?	See	tannery	on	
1876	map.	Jacob	Cunningham	born	1800	was	a	tanner.	Learned	trade	here?	
	
Zalmon	Ludington	started	Tannery	in	Fayette	Co.	1840	after	being	in	same	business	
At	Petersburg-Addison	
	
A	water	wheel	brought	water	to	tanning	pits.	
	
There	was	a	row	of	tanning	pits	lined	in	wood.	
	
Brick	and	stones	were	found	under	the	pits.	
	
Hides	were	first	soaked	for	several	weeks	in	liming	pits	of	calcium	oxide.	(Lime)	
	
Skins	were	then	laid	on	logs.		The	hair	was	then	removed	with	curved	unhairing	
knifes.	
	
Skins	were	then	turned	over	and	flesh	was	removed	with	fleshing	knifes.	
	
Hides	were	then	soaked	in	“ooze”	made	from	hemlock	or	oak	bark.		The	hides	were	
stirred	from	time	to	time.	
	



A	piece	of	leather	was	cut	off	to	see	if	it	was	brown	through.	
	
A	currier	finished	the	leather	by	rubbing	tanners	oil	(?)	and	tallow	into	it.		He	
trampled	the	stretched	leather.	
	
Article	says	J.K.	used	hollowed	logs	for	vats.	
	
Used	urine	and	Hemlock	bark?	
	
Bern	Connelly	deed	of	27	JAN	1840	says	
“McMillan	Mill	tract”	Hugh	Connelly	J.P.		
Pinkerton	Mill?		(steam	mill	at	Ft.	Hill	on	1876	map)	
Thomas	MacMillan	“miller”	on	taxlists	of	1830s	
Thomas	MacMillan	indicted	on	counterfeiting	silver	coins	1841	
	
Wrights	were	neighbors	near	Harrisburg	Pa.	of	McMillans	
John	of	James	Postmaster	1820	Paddytown	
J.K.	became	Postmaster?	
Turkeyfoot	P.O.	on	1876	map	
McMillan’s	were	Methodist	with	Connelly	Cunnigham	
	
10	May	380	acres	deed	John	Kilpatrick	to	Wm.	Rush	
1	½	acres	reserved	for	J.K.	MacMillan	for	tanyard	with	water	and	timber	rights..	
Younkin	tanyard	on	1876	map	next	to	Connor	property	
	
	
McCLINTOCK		
	
JOHN,	born	1732,	Co.	Donegal,	died	1789	at	Paddytown,	
ALEXANDER,	born	1733,	Co.	Donegal,	died	11	June	1803	at	Paddytown,	
WILLIAM	ROBERT,	born	1734,	Co.	Donegal,	died	1804	at	Cedar	Grove	Twp.	
Pickaway	County,	Ohio	
	
Alexander	died	11	June	1803	at	the	home	of	John	and	Jane	Cunningham.	
He	was	killed	by	a	run-away	log	during	a	log	rolling	contest	uphill	from	Bethel	
Church.		He	married	Mary	“Mollie”	Eston	about	1766.		Sister?	of		
Jane	Eston	who	married	John	Kilpatrick.	
Alexander	McClintock	served	in	the	War	of	Independence,	from	1778	to	1782	in	the	
Cumberland	County	Pa.	Militia	in	Capt.	John	Campbell’s	Company.	
John	served	in	Captain	Robert	McCallum’s	Co.	Lancaster	County,	1778	–	1782	
William	Robert	served	in	Captain	Blane’s	Co.	Cumberland	County	Militia,	1777.	
	
Children	of	Alexander	and	“Mollie”;	
	



ROBERT,	born	25	December	1770,	died	25	February	1837,	married	Rachel	Wilkins	
of	Peter	and	Margaret	Mitchell.	Rachel	drowned	with	her	baby	when	crossing	the	
Casselman	River	on	horseback.	
	
JANE,	20	October	1772,	died	28	June	1839,	married	John	Cunningham,	1770	–	1841.	
	
WILLIAM,	married	Elizabeth	Wilkens,	of	Peter	Wilkins	and	Margaret	Mitchell.	
	
ESTHER,	married	Daniel	Ross	and	moved	to	Ohio.	
	
ALEXANDER,	married	Nancy	Turney.	
	
ABIGAIL,	born	1785,	died	3	May	1855,	married	James	Wilkins	of	Peter	Wilkins	and	
Margaret	Mitchell.	
	
JOHN,	born	4	July	1777,	died	4	July	1848,	married	Jane	Pinkerton	
	
1785,	Alexander,	John	and	Robert	listed	for	the	first	time	on	tax	list	at	Turkeyfoot	
Twp.	
	
Land	patented	1787	by	Alexander	and		
	
1790		Bedford	Co.		
	 	 M+16			M–	16						Females	
	 Alex	 			2	 		3	 										5		
	 Robt.	 			1	 		__	 										1	
	
1796	tax	list	Robert	and	Alexander	
	
1798	Fed	tax	list,	
Robert,	2	cabins	$35.	Value,	400	acres		$1200.Value,		
adjoined	James	Campbell					
Alexander,	2	cabins	$30….181	acres		$210.	Value	
	
1802		Addison	Twp.	
McClintock,	Robert			acres	 										clear	 horses										1	cow	 	 house	
	 										Alex	 200	 	 60	 1	 	 2	 	 house	
	 	 “	 200	 	 20	 ___	 	 ____	 	 _____	
	 	 	 		40	 	 ____	 ___	 	 ____	 	 house	
	 Robert		 ____	 	 ____	 ___	 	 1	cow	 	 ____	
	 William	 ____	 	 ____	 2	 	 1	 	 ____	
	 John	 	 50	 	 1	 1	 	 ____	 	 house	
	 John	(Single)	
	
1805	 Robert		 90	 ____	 ____	 3	 ____	
	 Widow	 ____		 ____	 ____	 1	 ____	



	 William	 400	 80	 2	 2	 ____	
	 							“	 	 100	 ____	 ____	 ___	 ____	
			Alexander	(Single)	 ____	 ____	 ____	 ____	 ____	
	
1810	 Robert		 ____	 _____	 2	 1	 ____	
	 Wm.	 	 430	 	90	 1	 2	 _____	

John	 	 90	 ____	 1	 ___	 ____	
	

1811	 	 Robert	McClintock	 236	 	60	 2	 2	 	c	
	 	 Wm.	McClintock	 141	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___	
1815	
	 									John	McClintock		 200	 	75	 	2	 	1	 		c	
	 	 	 “	 	 	99		 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___	
	 									Robert	McClintock	 236	 	75	 2	 2	 	c	
	 									Wm.	McClintock		 150	 60	 2	 2	 	c	
1819		Add.	Twp.	 	 	 acres	 clear	 horse	 cow	 dwelling	
(TurkTwp.)		Robt.	McClintock	 145	 	60	 ____	 ____	 cabin	
	 											Robt.	McClintock	 200	 	75	 		2	 		4	 cabin	
	 											Wm.		McClintock	 310	 	90	 		1	 		4	 			h	
	 	 								“	 	 	 	44	 ____	 ____	 ____	 _____	

	
1825	 Turk.	Twp.	
	 Robert		 40	acres	 ____	
	 	 	 37	acres	 10	clear	
1829		Turk.	Twp.	
	 Robert		 149	a.	 	 40	cl.	 	 house	
	 	 	 110	a.	 	 15	cl.	 	 ____	
	 	 	 					1	a.	 	 		1	cl.	
	 	 	 	37	a.	 	 		5	cl.	 	 house	
1830	,	Add.	Twp.	McClintocks			
	Alex.	of	John	(&	Jane	Pinkerton?)		20	–	30			(settled	in	Kansas)	
	Robert	of	Alex.	1770	-1837			50	–	60		(and	Rachel	Wilkens?)		
Rachael	(Wilkens)		50	–	60		(of	Robt.	1770	–	1837)								
	Wm.	of	Alex.		50	-60		(and	Eliz.	Wilkens?)	
Michel		30	–	40	
John	of	Alex.	1777-1848,		50	–	60,		(and	Jane	Pinkerton?)	
	
In	Hanna	fight	–	Alex	of	John,	Robert	of	Alex,	Wm.	of	Alex	and	John	of	Alex..	
	
1831	 Addison	Twp.	
William		 	 306	 90	acres	 1	 1	 house	
		 	“	 	 140a.	 30cl.	 ___	 ___	 _____	
Alexander	of		W.	 	15	 	12	 ____	 1	 cabin	
	 John	Sr.	 200	 40	 3	 4	 house	
John	Sr.(Wirsing)	 160	 70	 ___	 ___	 house	
John	Sr.	(Luckett)	 150	 45	 ____	 ____	 house	



	 	 	 200	 25	 ____	 _____	 cabin	
	 	 	 	90	 ____	 ____	 ____	 house	
	 	 	 175	 	40	 ____	 ____	 cabin	
	 	 	 	27	 ____	 ____	 ____	 ____	
John	of	Robert	 	50	 ____	 ____	 ____	 cabin	
John	land	from	C.						380	 100	 ___	 ___	 ____	
																(Campbell?)	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 William	 ___	 ____	 ___	 ___	 ___	
	 Robert		 149	 	40	 	 	 house	
	 	 	 110	 16	 	 	 ____	
	 	 	 			1	 1	 	 	 house	
	 	 	 	37	 	5	 	 	 ____	
	
1835	 Addison	Twp.	
										Robert	 	 357	 60	 2	 2	 house	
		 		“	 	 236	 60	 ___	 ___	 house	
	 		“	 	 150	 30	 ___	 ___	 house	
	CHECK?Robert	of	John?			50			___	 ____	 ____	 	house	
	 Wm.	of	John	 ___	 ___	 1	 2	 2	houses	
Single	John	of	John	 ___	 ___	 ___	 1	 ____	
Single	Robt	.of	John		 ____	 ____	 ____	 ____	 ____	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	William	 	 140	 	50	 1	 1	 house	
	 	 						 	90	 10	 ____	 ____	 ______	
	
1839	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 													William	 	 140	 30	 2	 1	 house	
	 	 						‘’	 	 	 		80	 10	 ___	 ____	
1839		Add.		 Alex.	 	 	 280	 	25	 	2	 	2	 house	
	 	 Wm.	of	John	 	 300	 	75	 	1	 	1	 house	
	 	 John	of	John	 	 100	 	35	 	1	 	2	 house	
	 	 Mitchell	of	Robt.	 356	 100	 ___	 ___	 house	
	 	 John	Sr.	 	 220	 	50	 	2	 	3	 house	
	 	 			“		(Rice’s	farm)	 140	 	40	 ___	 ___	 house	
	 	 			“	(Robinsons)	 160	 	80	 ___	 ___		 house	
	 	 			“	(Rhoads)	 	 	90	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ____	
	 	 			“	(Bayes)	 	 	14	 ___	 ____	 ___	 cabin	
	 	 Alex.	of	Robt.	 	 ___	 ___	 	1	 	2	 ____	
	 (single)	Robt	E.P.	 	 1	horse?	
	
1839		Add.	Robert	McClintock	heirs	230	 80	 ___	 ___	 house	
	 	 widow		 	 			50	 ___	 	1	 	2	 ____	
	 	 John	 	 	 			50	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___	



	 	 John	of	Robert	 	 150	 	30	 2	 2	 house	
	
1840	Census	
Wm.	P.		 20	–	30	
John	J.	(?)	 30	–	40	
Robt.	J.	(?)	 20	–	30	 	
Alex.	E.	P.	 30	–	40							(of	John	&	Jane	Pinkerton)	later	to	Kansas	
	
Add.	Twp.	
1841	 Wm.	of	John	 300	acres	 40	clear	 1	horse	 2	cows		 house	
	 Alex.	of	Robt.		230	 	 	80	 	 ____	 	 1	cow	 	 ____	
	 Alex.	of	John	 195	 	 50	 	 ____	 	 2	cows		 house	
	 John	of	Robt.	 186	 	 50	 	 1	horse	 1	cow	 	 house	
	 John	 	 100	 	 20	 	 1	 	 2	 	 house	
	 John	Sr.	 200	 	 80	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
	 	 “	 	90	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ____	
	 	 “	 160	 	 80	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ____	
	 	 “	 	40	 	 ___	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 John	heirs	 	75	 	 ___	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 Mitchell(Single)	346	 	 100	 	 1	horse	 ____	 	 house	
	 Robt.	of	John(Single)			140	 	30	 	 1	horse	 1	cow	 	 house	
	
1844	Addison	Twp.	
	 James	(Single)	
	 Alex.	of	John	 200	 	 ___	 	 2	 	 1	 	 house	
	 John	 	 200	 	 ___	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 				“	 	 	90	 	 ____	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	 				“	 	 100	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 				“	 	 200	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
											William		 300	 	 ____	 	 	2	 	 	2	 	 house	
	 		“	 	 100	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 Robert		 140	 	 	 	 	2	 	 	2	 	 house	
	 John	of	John	 100	 	 ___	 	 	2	 	 	2	 	 house	
	 Alex.	of	Robt.				 	 		 	 	 	 one	cow	
	 Mitchell	 			 	 	 	 	 	 one	cow	
	 Jun	walk	(sp.?)		160					 	 	 ____	 	 1	cow	 	 _____	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1841	 Wm.	of	Robt.	 140	 	 	40	 	 	1	 	 	1	 	 house	
	 John	 	 	35	 	 	3	 	 ____	 	 ___	 	 house	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1844	 William	 one	cow	
	 Alexander	 one	cow	 house	
	 Alex.	(Single)	
	



1850	Census	Addison	Twp.	
222	 Alex	 45	 $700	
	 Nancy	47	
223	 John	 25	 ____	
	 E.	 23	
249	 John	(E.)	P.	 43	 $400.	 (of	John	(Alex	&	Mary	Eston)	&	Jane	Pinkerton)	
	 	 	 	 	 10	Sept.	1802	–	15	July	1892)	
	 Lydia	 	 32	 (Findley)			b.	6	Dec.	1813			son	Levi.	B.	1846	d.	1852	
250	 Robt.	 	 40?	 $600.	 (of	John	&	Jane	Pinkerton)	
	 Eveline	 30	 (McNair)	
251	 James	 	 28	 $1600		(of	John	and	Jane	Pinkerton)	
	 Rachel		 25	 (Cunningham)	
233	 Andrew	 23	 $1300	
	 Jane	 	 65	 (Pinkerton)	
	 (Pinkerton)	wife	of	John?	1777-1848	
	
	
James	CAMPBELL,	 
 
From	page	2,	1949	Hanna	History 
Married	1807-8,	to	Mary	Hanna,	b.	1776-1851,	who	became	the	second	wife	of	
James	Campbell, sister	of	James	Hanna,	d.	1819,	daughter	of	Alexander	d.	1809. 
First	home	in	Silbaugh	neighborhood	of	Addison	Twp.	-see	1819	map- 
Removed	to	“Old	Campbell	Farm”	between	Addison	and	Somerfield. 
Buried	with	stones	no	inscription,	a	large	tree	marks	the	spot. 
“many	distinguished	and	honored	citizens	traced	from	this	marriage” 
His	first	wife	was	Martha	Reid	Cunningham	of	County	Down,	Ire.,	mother	of	John	
Cunningham,	1770-1841. Martha’s	remains	are	buried	at	site	of	the	first	farm,	
inscription	of	tombstone	at	the	cemetery	near	Fort	Hill,	says	she	“died	18	Dec	1806,	
aged	60	years	and	6	months	(b.	June	1756) 
Widow	Martha	Reid	Cunningham	Campbell	immigrated	to	U.S.	about	1790	with	son	
John. 
 
???	a	James	Campbell	of	Little	Britain	Twp.	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.	
Oath	July	1777	before	Hon	Joseph	Millar	
Col.	Thomas	Porter’s	Battalion	Mustered	13	Aug.	1776	
Capt.	Thomas	Whitesides	
Little	Britain		(near	Pa.	border	S.	of	Lancaster	Pa.)	Twp.	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.	
	
1779	James	Camble			300a.	???	
	
1783		James	Camble				88	acres	???	
	 (Hugh	Cunningham	present)	relation	of	Mrs.	Martha	Cunningham?	
1785		James	Camble		not	present	
1786							“																										“	
	



James	Campbell	,	1781	not	on	Lurgan	Twp.	Cumberland	Co.	tax	list	
 
Taxlists	1772,	200a.	12cl.		1773,	not	1774,	not	1776,	not	1779,			  
1783		Not	on	tax	list	 
1784		Not	on	tax	list 
first	on	taxlist? 
1787				Warranted	land	301	acres,	next	to	the	McClintocks	 	 	 	  
1796				Warranted	250	acres,	next	to	the	McClintocks 
1796	 present	on	tax	list 
1797	 300	acres	 30	clear	 2	horses	 2	cows		 ______ 
1798	Fed.	tax? 
1798	 301	 	 30	 	 1	 	 1	 	 house 
1799	 301	 	 30	 	 1	 	 1	 	 				2 
	 200	 	 __	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ___ 
	 	50	 	 3	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ___ 
1801	 Weaver 
1802	ADDISON	TWP.	301	 30	 2	 3	 house 
	 	 	 	200	 20	 ___	 ___	 ___ 
	 	 	 	50	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___ 
	 	 Weaver	___	 ___	 ___	 	 1	 house 
 
1805	Add.	 James	Campbell	 	 301a.		 50cl.	 1h	 3c	 house	
	 	 	 			“	 	 	 200a.	 25cl.	
	 	 	 Sugarland	 	 			50a.	
	 	 		 						“	 	 	 				80a. 
 
1806	wife	Martha	Cunningham,	died.	He	remarried	Mary	Hanna,	1807-08.	James	
Hanna‘s	sister. 
 
1810	 300	 50	 2	 2	 house 
	 	50	 ___ 
	 	50	 ___ 
	 399	 ___ 
	 200	 30 
	 119	 30 
 
1811	 300	 50	 4	 3	 (m?)	house 
	 200	 25	 	 	 cabin 
	 119	 30	 	 	 cabin 
	 399	 ___	 	 	 ____ 
	 	50	 	3	 	 	 ____ 
	 25	 ___	 	 	 ____ 
 
1815	 300	 50	 4	 5	 cabin 
	 200	 30	 	 	 ____ 
	 399	 	9	 	 	 cabin 
	 119	 40	 	 	 cabin 



	 100	 10	 	 	 cabin 
	 	30	 ___	 	 	 ___ 
	 100	 ___	 	 	 ___ 
 
*1819	move?	189	 70	 2	 5	 2	cabins 
	 	 100	 10	 	 	 ____ 
	 	 100	 ____	 	 	 ____ 
	 		 	30	 ____	 	 	 ____ 
	 	 399	 3	 	 	 cabin 
	 	 300	 25	 	 	 house 
	 	 200	 30	 	 	 cabin 
	 	 	40	 ____	 	 	 ____ 
 
See	location	on	1819	map. 
 
As	stated	on	James	Hanna	Will,“Trusted	and	loving	friend	James	Campbell”	he	was	
executor	of	James	Hanna	Will	of	1819	with	John	Rush. 
 
1821	 149	 70	 still	 2	 4	 house 
	 300	 25	 	 	 	 house 
	 200	 25	 	 	 	 cabin 
	 100	 10	 	 	 	 cabin 
	 399	 10	 	 	 	 cabin 
	 100	 ___	 	 	 	 ____ 
	 	40	 ___	 	 	 	 ____	  
	 	20	 ___	 	 	 	 ____ 
 
1822	 149	 70 
	 300	 25 
	 200	 25 
	 399	 10 
	 100	 ___ 
	 	40	 ___ 
	 	20	 ___ 
	 100	 10 
				Andrew	Campbell	(no	land) 
 
1823	 149	 100	 2	horses	 2	cows		 house 
	 300	 	30	 _______	 	 ______	 	 cabin 
	 220	 10 
	 150	 11 
	 399	 	6 
	 	50	 ___ 
	 	10	 ___ 
	 	40	 ___ 
					Andrew	Campbell	(no	land) 
 



1824	 194	 100	 3	 3	 house 
1825	same	 300	 20	 ___	 ___	 house 
	 220	 	10 
	 150	 10	  
	 399	 	6 
	 	50	 ___ 
	 	10	 ___ 
	 	40	 ___ 
 
1826	 188	 60	 4	 2	 house 
1827	same	 300		 10	 	 cabin 
	 200	 15 
	 150	 60 
	 399	 	3 
	 	50	 ___ 
	 	20	 ___ 
	 	20	 ___ 
			Andrew,	Wheelwright,			 
			John,	Tavern 
 
1829	 200	 100	 2	 4	 2 
	 300	 25	 ___	 ___	 1 
	 200	 10	 ___	 ___	 cabin 
	 100	 3 
	 399	 ___ 
	 (others	cannot	read) 
 
1831		Addison	Twp.	 acres	 clear	 horse	 cow	 house	or	cabin 
 

John	Campbell	 ___	 ____	 ____	 ____	 _____ 
James	Campbell	 200	 100	 2	 4	 2	houses 

	 “	 	 300	 	25	 ___	 ___	 house 
	 “	 	 200	 	10	 ___	 	 cabin 
	 “	 	 	30	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___ 
	 “	 	 100	 			3	 ___	 ___	 ___ 
	 “	 	 399	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ___ 
1832	Add.	 	 James	Campbell		 200a.	 80cl.	 5h	 4c	 2	houses	
	 	 	 	 	 			40a.	 15cl.	
	 	 	 	 	 				30a.	
	
1833	Add.	 James	Campbell	
	 	 	 200a.	 80cl.	 5	h	 4	c	 2	houses	
	 	 	 			40a.	 15	cl.	
	 	 	 			30a.	
												Mountain	land		280a.	 20cl.	
	



1835	Addison	Twp. 
	 James	Campbell	 250	 100	 3	 3	 	house 
	 “	 	 	 280	 100	 ____	 ___	 cabin 
	 “	 	 	 180	 	10	 ____	 ____	 cabin 
	 “	 	 	 100	 	4	 ___	 ___	 ____ 
	 “	 	 	 300	 10	 ____	 ____	 ____ 
	 “	 	 	 	30	 0	 ____	 ____	 ____ 
James	Campbell	Jr.	(single	freeman) 
Wm.							“											 	 “ 
Charles	Jr.	 	 	
	
1836	Add.	 	 James	Campbell	 250a.	 100cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	
	 	 	 	 	 280a.	 			10cl.	 	 	 cabin	
	 	 	 	 	 180a.	 				10cl.	
	 	 	 	 	 100a.	 				11cl.	
	 	 	 	 	 		30a.	
	
1837	Add.	 	 	 James	Campbell	 250a.	 100cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	
	 	 	 	 	 	 280a.	 	10cl.	 	 	 cabin	
	 	 	 	 	 	 180a.	 	10cl.	
	 	 	 	 	 	 100a.	 			4cl.	
	 	 	 	 	 	 		30a.	
1839	 	Addison	Twp. 
	 James	Sr.	 225	 100	 2	 4	 	2	houses 
	 “	 	 	30	 ___	 ___	 ___	 ______ 
	 “	 	 300	 15	 ___	 ___	 1	house 
	 “	 	 100	 	6	 ___	 ___	 cabin 
	 James	Jr.	 ____	 ___	 1	 2	 _____ 
 
	 William	 200	 10	 2	 2	 ____ 
(Single)	John	 Clark 
(Single)	Alexander	 Laborer 
 
1840	Add.	 James	Campbell	Sr.	
	 	 	 225a.		 	 100cl.	 2h	 4c	 2	houses	
	 	 	 	30a.	
	 	 	 300	 	 	13cl. 
 
Add.	Twp.	1840	Census	James	70	to	80 
 
1841	Addison	Twp. 
	 James	Sr.	 235	 140	clear	 	 1	 	 1	 2	houses 
	 				“	 	 		30	 		5	 	 	 ____	 	 ____ 
	 Wm.	 	 220	 10	 	 	 2	 	 2	 cabin 
	 James	 	 301	 25	 	 	 2	 	 3	 cabin 
	 			“	 	 152	 10	 	 	 ____	 	 ___	 ___ 



 
(John	(clerk)	and	Meno?	(Drove)	single	Freeman) 
 
1843	 James	Sr.	 180	 	 	 	 1	 	 3											2	houses 
	 James	Jr.	 450	 	 	 	 2	 	 2 
	 Wm.		 	 220	 	 	 	 1	 	 2	 house 
 
1844	 John	 merchant	 cow 
	 Alexander	 _____	 	 horse 
	 James	Sr.	 255		 ____	 	 	 2	 	 2	 2	houses 
	 							“	 	 	30	 __________	 	 1	 	 2	 house 
	 William	 220	 ____	 	  
	 James	Jr.	 409	 ______s.	mill	 	 2	 	 2	 house 
	 David	(Single	Freeman) 
 
1845	Campbell 
	 James	Jr.	 400acres	 saw	mill	 2	horses	 2	cows				house 
	 John	 	 ____	 	 	 	 _______	 	 1	cow							_____ 
	 Alex.	 	 ____	 	 	 	 1	horse	 1	cow							____ 
	 James	Sr.	 255	 	 	 	 2	 	 2	 2	houses 
	 					“	 	 	30	 	 	 	 _______ 
	 Wm.	 	 220	 	 	 	 2	 	 2	 house 
 
Addison	Twp.	1850	U.S.	Census,	James,	90	years	old,	born	in	Ireland	ca.	1760	 
	 (2nd	wife)	Mary	(formerly	Hanna),	72	born	in	Pa. 
 

1805	James	Campbell	Assessor	Addison	Twp.		2	assistants	
	
Campbell	Cemetery.		2	miles	west	of	Addison	15	graves,	one	is	legible	Mary	Ellen	
dau.	of	M.C.	died	7/3/1850	

 
 
	
CUNNINGHAM,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
From	County	Down	to	America	when	John	was	16	ca.1790	with	his	mother	Martha	
Reid	Cunningham	born	ca.	1746.	County	Down,	Ireland.	
	 John’s	mother	married	James	Campbell		
	 John’s	daughter	Jane	married	Thomas	Hanna	
	 John’s	son	John	married	1808	Sarah	Pinkerton	
																											son	Eston	married	Rachel	McClintock								
																											son	James	married	Nancy	McMillan	
																daughter	Martha	“Mattie”	married	James	Bayes	
																daughter	Mary	married	Jacob	Gower	
	
John/James	Cunningham	b.	ca.	1744	Co.	Down,	Ireland	married	Martha	Reed	b.	June	
–Aug.	1746	County	Down,	Ireland	d.	18	December	1806	Fort	Hill,	Addison	Twp.	



	
Son	of	John/James	and	Martha;	
John	Cunningham	b.	1770	–	1774	in	County	Down,	Ireland	
Died	1841	Paddytown,	married	Jane	Ann	McClintock	
b.	20	Oct.	1770	to	1772,	d.	28	June	1839,	possibly	later.	
Daughter	of	Alexander	McClintock	and	Mary	“Mollie”	Eston	
	
John	and	Jane	Cunningham’s	children;	
					1.Alexander,	b.	30	–	31	Sept.	1793,	d.	7	–	8	Nov.	1879	Up.	Turk.	

m.	first	Julian,	m.	second	to	Susan	Foust	
					2.		James,	b.	31	Oct.	1795,	d.	1865	Up.	Turk.	Married	Nancy	McMillan	
					3.		Martha	“Mattie,”	b.	3	April	1797,	d.	20	Sept.	1884	Hicksville,	Ohio	
	 m.	James	Bayes	son	of	Thomas	and	Anna	Wright	
					4.		William,	b.	ca.	1798,	d.	28	June	1839	Up.	Turk.	
			 m.	Sidney	Marietta	in	1825	
					5.		Jacob,	b.	19	April	1801,	d.	18	Dec.	1885	Somerset,	Pa.	
	 m.	Elizabeth	Gilbert	born	at	Shippensburg	Pa.	
					6.		Jane	“Jennie,”	b.	29	Aug.	1803,	d.	6	Oct.	1860	
	 m.	Thomas	Hanna	of	James	on	3	Jan.	1820	
					7.		John	Jr.	26	April	1806,	d.	10	Nov.	1875	
	 m.	Elizabeth	Marietta	on	10	April	1836	
					8.		Margaret	“Peggy,”	b.	26	April	1806,	d.	1896,	New	Athens,	Ohio	
				 m.	Moses	C.	Justice	ca.	1826	
					9.		Mary,	b.	ca.	1808,	d.	6	Feb.	1852	(Fort	Hill	Site,	Addison	Twp.)	
	 m.	Jacob	Gower	
			10.		Robert,	b.	11	–	31	Oct.	1808,	d.	7	June	1889	in	WV.	
	 m.	Sarah	Jane	Pinkerton	of	Matthew	
			11.		Eston,	b.	23	May	1813,	d.	23	May	1886	Addison	Twp.	
	 m.	Rachel	C.	McClintock	of	John	E.	and	Jane	Pinkerton	
	
1787		tax	list	John	as	non	resident	paying	tax	on	land	(for	stepfather	James	
Campbell?)	
1788				James	Campbell	first	on	tax	list	-	John	lived	with	his	mother	Martha	who	was	
married	to	James	Campbell,	whose	land	adjoined	Alexander	McClintock,	in	Addison	
Township,	south	of	the	land	formation	known	as	Fort	Hill.	Moved	to	Upper	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	later.	
1795			James,	first	child	born	to	John	and	Jane	McClintock	
1796	 John,	first	time	on	tax	list	
1797	 John	 300	acres	 6	clear					0	horses	 1	cow	
1798	 John	 300	 	 8	 	 	 2	cows	
1798				John	Fed.	Tax,		300	acres,	$460.	Value,	1	cabin	house	$6.	1	cabin	stable	$5.		
1799	 John	 300	 	 10	 	 	 3	cows		 cabin	
1800	 John	 2M	und	10,		M	27	–	45,		2F	und	10,	F	27	-45			F	over	45,	Jane’s	Mom?	
1801	 John	 300	 	 10	 	 	 4	cows		 cabin	
1805	 John	 200	 	 20															2	horses	 2	cows		 house	
1806	 John	 200	 	 20	 	 2	 2	 	 1	



1807	 John	 200	 	 20	 	 2	 2	 	 1	
1810	 John	 2M	und10,			2M	10	-16,	1M	und	45,		3F	und10,	2F	10	-16,	1F	und	45	
1811	 John	 250	 	 40	 	 3	 4	 	 cabin	
1813	 John	 250	 	 40	 	 2	 4	 	 1	
1814	 John	 250	 	 50	 	 2	 4	 	 ____	
1815	 John	 250	 	 50	 	 3	 4	
1816	 James		Add.	Twp.	Tavern	 	 2	horses			2	cows	
1817	 John	 250	 	 50	 	 2	 4	 	 cabin	
1817	 James	Add.	Twp.	 	 	 2	 1	
1818	 James	 100	 	 20	Add.	Twp.	2	 3	
1818	 John	 250	 	 50	 	 2	 4	 	 cabin	
1819	 John	 250	 	 50	 	 2	 3	 	 cabin	
1819	 James	 100	 	 20		Add.	Twp.	2	 3	
1820	 John		2M	und	10,		2M	und	16,		1M	16-26,		1M	45+,	2	F	to	16,	……..	
1820	 James		16	to	26						1F	und	10…….?	
1820	 John	 270	acres	 65	clear	 3	horses	 5	cows		 cabin	
	 James			Distiller		_______	 	 _____	 	 1	cow	 	 cabin	 	
1821	 John	 270	 65	 	 	 2	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	 	 	 	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	 Single	Alex	 	 	 	
1822	 John	 270	 65	 	 	 2	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	 	 	 	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
1823	 John	 250a.	 65cl.	 	 	 2	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	“Blacksmith”	 	 	 0	 	 1	 	 cabin	
1824	 John	 250	 65	 	 	 2	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	“Blacksmith”	 	 	 0	 	 1	 	 cabin	
1825	 John	 250	 65	 	 	 3	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	“Blacksmith”	 	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
1826	 Alexander	 200	 35	 	 2	 	 2	 	 cabin	
	 John	 250	 75	 	 	 3	 	 4	 	 cabin	
	 James	“Blacksmith”	 	 	 0	 	 2	
1827				John		 250	acres	 75	clear	 3	horses	 4	cattle	 house	
	 James	 Blacksmith	 	 	
1829				John	 250	 60	 2	 2	 house	
	 Alexander	 ___	 ___	 2	 2	 ___	
														James						Blacksmith,		 cow	_____	
1830	 Census	
	 Alexander	
	 John		
	 James	
	
1830	Turk.	Cunningham			
															James	“Blacksmith”	 	 	 cow	
	 		John	 	 250a.	 60cl.	 2h	 2c	 house	
	 	Alexander	 200a.	 40cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	



1831	 John	 250	 	 60	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	 	 	
	 Alex	 200	 	 40	 	 1	 	 2	 	 cabin	
													James		Blacksmith	 	 	 0	 	 1	
	
1832	Turk.	Cunningham	
														James			“Blacksmith”	1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 John	Sr.	 280a.	 60cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	
	 Alexander	 278a.	 50cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	
1833	Turk.	Cunningham	
	 James			“Blacksmith”	1h	 2c	 	 cabin	
	 John	Sr.	 280a.	 60cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	
	 Alexander	 270a.	 50cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	
1834	Turk.	Cunningham	
	 Robert		 1	horse	 cabin	
	 Eston	 	 Blacksmith	
	 James	 	 Blacksmith	 1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 John	Sr.	 280a.	 60cl.	 3c	 house	
	 Alex	 	 270a.	 	50cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	
1835	Turk.	 Alex.	Cunningham	 216a.	 40cl.	 1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 John	Jr.		(Single	freeman)	 	 1	horse	
	 John	 	 250	 60	 2	 3	 	 	 house	
	 Robert		 ____	 ____	 ____	 1	 	 	 cabin	
														Eston			Blacksmith	 ___			_____	 	 	 	 cabin	
	 James		Blacksmith		307	 60	 1	 2	 	 cabin	
	
1836	Turk.	 Alex	Cunningham	 216a.	 	40cl.	 2h	 3c	 house	
	
1837	Turk.	 Cunningham		
																																									Alex.		 216a.		 40cl.	 1h	 3c	 house	
	 	 	 Easton			Blacksmith	
	 	 	 John	 250a.	 60cl.	 2h	 3c	 house	
	 	 	 Robert		 	 1h	 1c	 house	
	 	 	 James		Blacksmith	 1h	 2c	 house	
	
1840	Turk.	Cunningham		
														Alex.	 														216a.	 35cl.	 Blacksmith	 1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 Austin(Eston)			Blacksmith	 2	cows		 cabin	
	 John	 	 260	 60cl.	 1h	 2c	 house	
	 Robert		 100	 10cl.	 1c	 cabin	
	 James	 	 307	 60cl.	 1h	 2c	 house	
	
1840			Census	
														Alex		30	to	40							(next	to	Alex	Hanna	&	Bernard	Connelly	Jr.)	



														James				40	to	50		(near	John	Younkin)	
	 Robert			30	to	40		(next	to	Wm.	Pinkerton)	
	 John							60	to	70		(near	Wm.	Rush,	John	K.	McMillan)	
	 John	Jr.		30	to	40																“	
	 Eston					20	to	30		(near	John	&	John	Jr.)	
	
1841	 Alexander	 270	 45	 Blacksmith	 1	 2	 cabin	
	 Eston	 	 	20	 	3	 Blacksmith	 1	 2	 cabin	
	 John	Jr.	 243	 60	 	 	 2	 2	 house	
	 James	 	 307	 75	 	 	 2	 3	 house	
JOHN	Sr.	DIED	THIS	YEAR.	
	
1844	 	
	 Alexander	 222	 ____	 Blacksmith	 1	 2	 house	
														Eston	 	 	20	 ____	 Blacksmith	 1	 1	 house	
														Robert		 100	 ____	 	 ___	 cow	 house	
	 James	 	 307	 ____	 	 	 2	 2	 house	
	 John	 	 250	 ____	 	 	 1	 1	 house	
	 	
	
1848	Tax	list		Up.	Turk.	Twp.		
	 Alexander	 Blacksmith	
														Easton														Blacksmith	
	 Robert	
	 James	
	 John	
	
1850		Agricultural	Census	
	 James	Cunningham	of	John	Sr.	
	 90	improved	120	unimproved		$1200	cash	value			$100.	Farm	impl.	
	 3	horses		5	cows		15	beef			30	sheep		15	pigs		3,00(0)?b	wheat	
	 200	b.	rye		30	b.	Ind.	corn		700b.	oats		100lbs	wool		25b.	Irish	potatoes	
	 130b.	buckwheat		200lbs	butter		10	tons	hay		1b.	clover	seed	
	 100lbs.	maple	sugar		3	gallons	molasses	
	
	 John	Cunningham	
	 75	acres		improved,		170	unimproved,		$2000.	Cash	value,			
														$200.	Farm	implements	
	 2	horses,		5	cows,		6	beef,		19	sheep,		6	pigs,		26b.	wheat,	50b.	rye	
	 100b.	oats,		20lbs.	wool,		25b.	Irish	potatoes,		15b.	buckwheat,			
	 275	lbs.	butter,		8	tons	hay,		130	lbs.	maple	sugar.		10	gal.	molasses	
	
1850	Agricultural	Census	
	 Check???	 James				200	acres	improved				107	unimproved,	
	 7	horses,			12	milch	cows,			15	beef,			30	sheep,			15	pigs,	ADD	CROPS???	
	



	  
 
McNEILL,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
Neil	Bell	McNeill,	married	
Mary	Boyce	McNeill,	both	of	Ugundale,	Argyleshire,	Scotland	to	County	Antrim,	
Ireland	
	
1.	Laughlin	born	1747,	married	Rebecca,	immigrated	to	the	U.S.	before	1787	
First	settled	in	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.		(see	Caernovan	Twp.	1790	census)	
1797	or	8	Laughlin	left	Lancaster	Co.	to	Chautauqua	Co.	N.Y.	and	died	there	in	1813	
	
2.		Neil	died	1804,	Cocalico	Twp.	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.		
	
3.	James	born	13	April	1764,	married	Sarah	Dunlap,	1760	–	20	Jan.	1846	
Immigrated	to	the	U.S.	1795-6.	James	died	12	April	1800,	felling	a	tree.		
1798,	James	first	appeared	on	the	Federal	tax	list	in	Paddytown	
	
Children	of	James	and	Sarah;	
Anne	born	Rasharkin,	Co.	Antrim,	1787,	m.	Jacob	Rush,	died	1866	
James	born	Rasharkin	Co.	Antrim,	married	cousin	Margaret	McNeill	who	died	1887,		
James	died	10	Oct.	1840,	north	of	Jersey	Church,		5	children;	James,	Sarah,	Robert,		
Rebecca,	James	
Mary	never	married,	lived	with	her	mother	and	later	Mrs.	Jacob	Rush,	buried	next	to	
sister	Sarah	at	Jersey	Church.	
Sarah	born	27	Oct.	1798	at	Paddytown,	married	23	Dec.	1819	John	Hanna,	died	8	
July	1875.	Six	children;	Mary,	Ann,	James,	John,	William	Sarah	
Laughlin	born	1785	Rasharkin	Co.	Antrim,	died	22	Dec.	1870		
m.	Sarah	McClintock	d.	17	Nov.	1853,		lived	in	mother’s	house,	had	nine	children	
Anne	had	no	children	
Sarah	moved	to	Iowa	and	Nebraska	
Neal	moved	to	near	Onawa,	Iowa	
Mary	had	no	children	
James	moved	near	Onawa,	Iowa	
Rachel	
Jane	moved	to	Kansas	
Laughlin	died	at	Virginia	City,	Nevada	
Edwin	Ruthven	moved	to	near	Onawa,	Iowa	
	
Who	was	the	Hector	McNeill	of	land	warrant?	
	
James	Sr.	died	1800,	lived	just	south	of	Humbert		
Wife	Sarah	Dunlap	died	1846,	“a	Poteen	Widow”??	
Laughlin	Jr.		died	1853,	of	James	Sr.		
Wife	Sarah	McClintock		died	1870	
James	Jr.	died	1840	



Wife	Margaret	died	1882	
Robert	1833	–	1895,		of	James	Jr.	b.	1788	
Lived	on	farm	of	parents	James	&	Margaret	near	Jersey	Church.	
	
The	1790	census	of	Canaervon	Twp.	of	Lancaster	County	has	a	Laughlin	McNeil	and	
some	other	Somerset	County	names	listed	there.	
	
1796,		not	listed	
1798	Fed.	Tax	list,		James,	 290	acres	 2	cabins	
1800	U.S.	census,	Sarah,		2	M	10-	16,	2	F	under	10,		1	F		10	–	16,		1F		26	–	45	
			
																																								acres															clear	 	 horses		 cows	 													house	
	
1801	James	 	 100	 	 20	 	 1	 	 2	 	 cabin	
1805	Widow	 	 290	 	 20	 	 1	 	 2	 	 house	
1810	Widow	 	 300	 	 40	 	 2	 	 3	 	 ______	
											Laughlin	(Single)	_____		 ____	 	 _____	 	 _____	 	 ______	
	
1811		 	 	 	
Widow	McNeil	 290	 	 	40	 	 2	 	 2	 	 cabin	
Laughlin	McNeil	(Single)____		 ____	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ______	
	
1815	
Widow	McNeil	 290	 	 40	 	 2	 	 3	 	 cabin	
	
1819	
Widow	McNeil	 290	 	 50	 	 2	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	
1821	 	 							 	
	
Widow	McNeil					 	290	 	 70				Distill	 2	 	 3	 	 cabin	
Laughlin(Single)	 	______	
James	(Single)						______	
	
1825	 	
Widow	McNeil								 262	 	 100	 	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
Laughlin	McNeil			 290	 	 	50				Distill	 1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
	 “	 								 100	 	 	20	 ______	 ___	 	 ___	 	 _____	
	
1829	
Widow	McNeil	 100	 	 	20	 														1	 	 1	 	 cabin	
Laughlin	McNeil	 290	 	 	40	 	 2	 	 1	 	 house	
James	McNeil		 264	 	 	75	 	 2	 	 4	 	 house	
	
1831	 Widow	 	 100	 	 20	 	 ____	 	 1	
	 cabin	



	 Laughlin	 290	 	 40	 	 2	 	 1	 	 house	
	 James	 	 264	 	 75	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	
1835	 Widow	 	 100	 	 10	 	 _____	 	 2	
	 house	
	 James	 	 256	 	 100	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	 Laughlin	 100	 	 	35	 	 3	 	 3	 	 house	
	 							“	 	 190	 	 	20	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 ______	
																				‘	 	 397	 	 	50	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 _____	
	
1839	 Widow	 	 100	 	 16	 	 1	 	 2	
	 house	
	 James	 	 256	 	 75	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	 Laughlin	 		90	 	 73	 	 1	 	 3	 	 house	
																			“	 	 200	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 ____	 	 ____	
	 					“	 	 400	 	 40	 	 ___	 	 ___	 	 house	
	
McNeal			Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
1841	 Laughlin	 100	 	 40	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
	 					“	 	 190	 	 ___	 	 ___________________	 	 house	
	 				“	 	 100	 	 40	 	 ________________________________________	
	 Widow	 	 120	 	 10	 	 1	 	 3	 cabin	
	 James	 	 356	 	 70	 	 3	 	 4	 	 house	
	
1844	 Laughlin	 100	 	 100	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
	 				“	 	 200	 	 ___	 	 _______________________________________	
	 				“	 	 100	 	 ___	 	 _______________________________________	
Widow	(Sarah?)	 200	 	 ____	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
Mary	(Margaret?)	 120	 	 ____	 	 1	 	 2	 	 house	
	
	
1850	Census,	McNeil,			Lower	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
		
Margaret	 50	 Farming	 value	2,200	
Robert		 19	 Laborer	
Rebecca	 15	
James			 11	
	
Laughlin	 63	 no	value	given	 born	in	Ireland	
Sarah	 	 51	
Anna	 	 27	
Sarah	 	 25	
Neil	 	 23	
Mary	 	 22	
James	 	 21	



Rachel		 19	
Jane	 	 17	
Laughlin	 15	
Edwin	L.		 13	
	
1850		Agricultural	Census,	Lower	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 Laughlin	McNeil	
	 175	improved,	525	unimproved,	$3000.	Cash	value,	$150.	farm	implements	
	 4	horses,	15	cows,		30	beef,			40	sheep,			5	pigs,	$680.	Value	of	livestock	
	 106	b.	wheat,		200	b.	Indian	corn,		260	b.	oats	
	 (do	not	have	rest	of	record)	
	
1850		Agricultural	Census,		Margaret	McNeil,			100	acres	Improved,			120	
unimproved,		$2200.	Cash	value,	$50.	Value	of	implements,					3	horses					3	milk	cows,					
9	other	cattle,	
	 		7	sheep,			12	swine,					$473	value	livestock.	
	 	
	 		60	b.		wheat	
	 				7	b.		rye	
	 200	b.		corn	
	 300	b.		oats	
	
1860	Census	
Margaret	 61	 spinster	
Robert		 29	 farmer	
Rebecca	S.	 24	 seamstress	
James	 	 21	 farmer	
James	 	 27	 farmer	
Sarah	 	 26	 spinster	
Marcellus	 	7	
Allison		 4	
Allen	B.		 1	
Michael	Sanner,		70				farmer	
Sarah	McNeal	60	 spinster	
Jane	 	 22	 seamstress	
Mary	 	 26	 seamstress	
	
1870		Census	 	
(James	south	of	near	Bailey	&	Mountains	north	of	Jersey	Church	
1828	James	on	land	deed	near	them)	
	
James	McNeil,		39	 farmer,			$3,000.		Real	Estate,				$1300.		Personal	Estate	
Sarah	 	 37	
(Male)	Marcellus		17	
Eliza.	A.			14	
Allen	 		11	



Emma	B.			10	
Mary	C.			6	
Laughlin				1m.	
Michael	McClintock		42		farm	laborer	
	
James		26			farmer	
Kesiah		25		keeping	house	
John			1m.	
Margaret	71	
Robert			35			farmer	
Rebecca		24				keeping	house	
James	B.		5	
Bruce			8	month	
	
	
HANNA	,			at	Paddytown,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		
	 	
James	Sr.	sister	Mary	married	James	Campbell	in	1808.		
Campbell’s	first	wife	was	Martha	Cunningham.	
Elizabeth	Hanna	Married	Judge	George	Chorpenning	1785-1857	
John	married	Sarah	McNeill	in	1819.	Built	Hanna	House	B	and	B.	
Thomas	married	Jane	Cunningham	of	John	in	1820.	
James	Jr.	married	Amy	Husband	in	1822	and	died	in	1824.			
Alexander	married	Jane	Rush	of	William	and	Sarah	Kilpatrick	in	1824.	
Jane	Hanna	married	John	Brooke	in	1837.	Built	Jersey	Church	and	Knobloch	brick	
house	
James	Sr.’s	wife	Ann	was	brother	to	John	Leech,	a	County	Commissioner		
	
Alexander,	born,	1737,	Co.	Monaghan	Ireland,		-	died	8	July	1809	buried	at	
Crossroads	Cemetery	near	Harnedsville.	
	 married	Martha,	moved	from	Monaghan	Twp.	York	Co.	to	Somerset	Co.	1798.		
Alexander	was	in	the	1st	class	of	the	Monaghan	Twp.	York	County,	Pa.	Militia	and	
was	a	war	tax	sponsor,	1775.	
Children	of	Alexander	and	Martha;	

A. Thomas	b.	York	Co.		Pa.	(invalid	?)	James’s	will	of	1819	allotted	Thomas	with	
an	annual	amount	of	money	and	mentioned	him	as	“unfortunate”.	

B. Margaret	b.	York	Co.	Pa.		
m.	21	July	1786	at	Jersey	Church	
John	Rush	of	Jacob	(Executor	of	James	Will	of	1819)											
Moved	to	National	Road	Brownsville,	Pa.	after	1832	

C. Jane	b.	York	Co.	Pa.	buried	at	New	Centerville	Cem.	
Married	Reuban	Tedrow	1805	

D. 	Mary	b.	1776	at	York	Co.	Pa.	d.	1851	
Married	James	Campbell	1808	
	

E. James	b.	1	Nov.	1770	at	Ballybay	Co.	Monaghan	Ireland	



m.	Ann	Leech,	of	Monaghan	Twp.	York	Co.	Pa.		Warrington	Friends	Mtg.	
d.	16	September	1819,	west	of	Rockwood,	Pa.	

Children	of	James	and	Ann;	
1. John	b.	26	April	1795	York	Co.	d.	17	Sept.	1882	Lower	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	

m.	Sarah	McNeill	of	James	
						2.		Mary,	b.	3	July	1796	York	Co.	d.	22	July	1853	
	 m.	John	Letts	11	July	1816,	moved	to	Ohio	soon	after	m.	
						3.		Thomas	b.	25	January	1798	York	Co.	d.	19	March	1872	Kansas	
	 m.	Jane	Cunningham,	6	Feb.	1820	
						4.		James,	b.	25	Feb.	1800	west	of	Rockwood	pa.	d.	25	Sept.	1824	Som.	Co.	
	 m.	Amy	Husband	4	July	1822	
						5.		Alexander,	b.	1	June	1802	west	of	Rockwood	Pa.	d.	12	May	1880	at	
Harnedsville,	m.	Jane	Rush	3	or	6	June	1824	of	Sarah	Kilpatrick	&	Wm.	Rush	
	 m.	Rachel	Holliday	ca.	1850	
						6.		William,	b.	9	March	1805	west	of	Rockwood	Pa.	d.	12	Aug.	1890	Som.	Co.	
	 m.	Harriet	Walter	16	Nov.	1842	
						7.		Phoebe,	b.	22	May	1807	west	of	Rockwood	Pa.	d.	19	June	1858	Accident,	Md.	
	 m.	Daniel	Heinbaugh,	5	Feb.	1828	moved	to	Cove	area	of	Md.		
					8.		Jane,	26	Feb.	1810	west	of	Rockwood	Pa.	d.	21	January	1888	Som.	Co.	
	 m.	John	Brooke	26	March	1837	
					9.		Martha,	b.	4	March	1813	d.	30	January	1905	lived	on	parents	farm	whole	life	
			10.		Ann,	10	September	1814	d.	10	May	1860	lived	on	parents	farm	her	entire	life	
				
	
Paddytown	land	of	James	Hanna,	400	acres	in	1819	adjoined	by	McNeill	and	James	
Wright	
Later	circa	1842	adjoined	by;	
SW	Laughlin	McNeill,	formerly	Dan	McCarty	
S		J.	K.	McMillan	
SE		Edward	Durning	
E		John	Younkin	formerly	Jacob	
N		Michael	Ansel	
W		Jacob	Younkin	
	
See	1798	Fed.	tax	list	first	time	appearance		in	Somerset	County	at	Milford	Twp.	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	(Paddytown)	
1802	 Hannah	(sic)	 	 	 400	a.	 	 30	cl.			“for	M.	Carter”	(McCarty?)	
1805	 James	(of	Milford	Twp.)	 400	acres	 30	clear	 	 house	
1810			James	 	 	 	 400	acres	 40	clear	 bought	land	of	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Daniel	McCarty	
1811			James		 	 	 	 400	 	 40	
1815	 James	 	 	 	 400	 	 40	
1819	 James	Sr.	died,			(executor	of	his	will	was	James	Connelly	of	Bernard	Sr.)	
1820	 Ogg	(?	Young	in	Gaelic?)	
	 Thomas	



1820	 U.S.	census	Thomas	listed	
1821	 Thomas	 400	acres	 65	clear	 2	horses											_______	 	 house	
1821	 James	heir			lot	at	Somerfield	Add.	Twp.	
1822	 Thomas	 400	 65	 	 	 2	 	 1	cow	 	 house	
	 John	 	 ____	
1824	 Thomas	 400	 70	 	 	 1	 	 2	 	 cabin	
	 John	 	 _____	
1825	 Thomas	 400	 70	 	 	 1	 	 2	 	 cabin	
	 Alexander	 380	 60	 	 	 2	 	 1	 	 house	
1829	 Alexander	 300	 50	 	 	 3	 	 3	 	 house	
	 John		Addison	Twp.		3	acres		 	 2	 	 3	 	 _____	
1830	 Thomas	and	Alex	listed	in	U.S.	census	
1831	 Thomas	 400	 6	 	 	 ____	 	 ____	 	 cabin	
	 Alexander	 ____	 ____	 	 	 1	 	 2	 	 _____	
1835	 Thomas	“Esq.”394	 20	 	 	 0	 	 3	 	 cabin	
John	“Esq.”AddisonTwp.		108	 60	 	 0	 	 3	 	2	lots,	house	
James	Sr.	heirs	sold	402	acre	tract	to	Laughlin	McNeil	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1839	 Thomas	 245	 20	 	 	 1	 	 3	 	 house	
	 Alexander	 _____	 ____	 	 	 ____	 	 1	cow	 	 cabin
	 John	Add.	Twp.	120	 70	 	 	 2	 	 7	 	 house	
1840	 (Alex.	next	to	Bernard	Connelly	Jr.)	(Thomas	next	to	Gary	and	Henry)	
1841	 Thomas	 245	 35	 	 	 2	 	 3	 	 house	
	 Alexander	 	 	 	 	 	 	 1	cow	 	 cabin	
	 John	Add.	Twp.	120	 70	 	 	 2	 	 5	 	 house	
1844	 Thomas	 247	 ____	 	 	 2	 	 2	 	 house	
	 Alexander	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 1	cow	
	 cabin	
	 John	 	 200	 ____	
	 John	 	 215	 ____	
	 John	Add.	Twp.		120			____	 	 	 2	 	 10	 	 house	
	 			(Silbaugh)	 200	 160	
	 			(lints?)	 200	 ____	
	 			(Shafer)	 200	 ____	
	 			(Infield)	 225	 ____	
1848				Thomas,	Alexander	
1849				Alexander	moved	to	Harnedsville.	
1850	 Agricultural		Census	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	

Thomas	40	improved	acres,	200	unimproved,			$1200	cash	value,	$100.	farm			
Implements,			3	horse,	 4	cows,	 6	beef,					19	sheep,			9	pigs,		15	b.	
wheat,		200	b.	oats,	30	lbs.	wool,				15	b.	Irish	potatoes,			48	b.	buckwheat,		300	
lbs.	butter,		6	tons	hay	
	
James		(son	of	John)	100	acres	improved,		114	unimproved,		$2000.	Cash	
value,			$100.	farm	implements,		2	horses,			6	cows,		6		beef,			6		sheep,		12	pigs,			
400	b.		oats,		20	lbs.	wool,		15	b.	Irish	potatoes,		75	b.	buckwheat,			350	lbs.	
butter,	



3	tons	hay,		30	lbs.	flax,			3	bu.	Flax	seed,		70	lbs.	maple	sugar,		4	gallons	
molasses.	
	
This	James	died	young	and	is	buried	with	a	headstone	at	the	Paddytown	
Cemetery.	
	

	Thomas	moved	out	west????	
	
	
LEECH	
	

Ann	Leech	Hanna	b.	1	May	1771	–	d.	28	Nov.	1857.	
		
Her	family	was	Quaker	and	three	quarters	of	her	lineage	immigrated	from	
Ireland.	She	and	her	brother	sister	and	two	Aunts	married	non-Quaker	spouses	
and	moved	to	Somerset	County.		
Married	1794	to	James	B.	Hanna,	Brigade	inspector	for	12th	Division	during	the	
period	of	the	War	of	1812	
Owned	a	sizable	library	with	two	sets	of	law	books.	
Ann’s	first	child	John	was	born	26	April	1795.	
1798	Hannas	moved	to	Milford	Twp.	Somerset	Co.	with	brother	Thomas	Hanna,	
sister	and	father	Alex.		
They	bought	this	farm	from	brother	in	law	John	Leech.	
father	Michael	Tedrow	Warranted	land	1784	Milford	Twp.	
	
Thomas	Leech	,	1745	–	1822,	Father	of	Ann	
The	home	which	is	still	there,	is	on	today’s	Bentzel	Road	in	Warrington	Twp.	
York	Co.	in	Rev.	War	paid	indirectly	for	a	substitution	and	served	guarding	war	
prisoners	for	2	months.		Married	Phebe	Penrose,	1766,	at	Warrington	
Meetinghouse	which	is	still	there.	
Irish	brogue	detected	in	statements	written	about	Thomas	Leech	service	in	Rev.	
War	in	Leech	book.	

	
John	Leech,		Brother	of	Ann	
John	Leech	1767	-1864,	wife	Jane	b.	York	Co.	1769	–	d.	1841,		Mercer	Co.	Pa.		
m.	Jane	Morrison	1788,	of	Wm.	&	Patience	Brown	who	lived	a	short	distance	S.	of	
Leeches.	In	Warrington	Twp.		Morrisons	were	formerly	of	Chester	Co.	Pa.	
John	was	a	J.P.		and	County	Commissioner	1795	(177	votes)		
Assistant	Assessor	for	Federal	Direct	Tax	of	1798.			
1792	arrived	to	Somerset	Co.	brother	of	Ann	
Warranted	land	1793	Black	Twp.		
1802	moved	to	N.W.	Mercer	Co.	Pa.	
	
Jane	Leech	Tedrow,	Sister	of	Ann,		
moved	to	Milford	Twp.	1786,	after	marriage	to	Reuban	in	1786	



Father	Michael	Warranted	land	1784	in	Milford	Twp.	a	mile	or	so	from	Aunt	
Sarah	Leech	Cox,	in	1837	or	1838,	moved	to	Athens	County,	Ohio	in	southwest	
Ohio	
	
Sarah	Leech	Cox,	Aunt	of	Ann,		
m.	Jacob	Cox,	Warranted	land	1790,	Middle	Creek	Twp.	
Just	south	of	today’s	Laurel	Lake	near	farm	of	Tedrows	
	
Rachel	Leech	King,	Aunt	of	Ann,		
m.	Christopher	King,	Warranted	land	1785,	Lower	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		Chris.	King	
farm	adjoined	Thomas	Leech	in	Warrington	Twp.	York	Co.	
Chris.	King,	in	Capt.	Wilson	Co.	Rev.	War	1783	tax	list	Monaghan	Twp.	York	Co.	
David	King,	Warranted	land	1785	(Kings	just	south	of	McNeills)		
Brother	Philip	King	Warranted	land	Milford	Twp.	1785	
m.	Ann	BROOKE,	1751-	1840	of	Wm.	1713-1763	
Brother	Michael	King,		

	
David	Jones	Jr.	1745	–	d.	abt.	1827	Adams	Co.	OH	
m.	Mary	BROOKE,	sister	of	Ann	Brooke	King	of	Wm.	1713-1763	
Warranted	land	1794,	Middle	Creek	Twp.	Sawmill		
Ch.	Elizabeth,	Col.	Jehu	Brooke,	John,	David,	Matthew,	Nancy	Ann,	Mary,	Eleanor	
	
John	Brooke	Jones	Warranted	land	Middle	Creek	Twp.	1784	
William	Brooke	Warranted	land	UPPER	TURKEYFOOT	TWP.	1785,	son	of	Wm.	
Matthew	Brooke	Warranted	land	Middle	Creek	Twp.	1786,	son	of	Wm.	of	
Montgomery	Co.	Pa.		
David	Brooke	Warranted	land	Black	Twp.	1794	
Capt.	John	Brooke,	1740-1813,	son	of	Wm.	sons	Jesse	and	Robert	
Rev.	War	Capt.	6th	Battalion	Philadelphia	Co.	later	in	Capt.	John	Missimer	Co.	of	
Limerick	Twp.	York	Co.,	buried	at	Montgomery	Co.	Pa.	
	
David	Jones	b.	1710	Wales,	m.	Eleanor	d.	1760	Hanover	Twp.	Phila.	Co.	
Ch.	David	Jr.	John,	William,	Margaret,	Rachel,	Mary	

	
William	Jones,	Warranted	land	1785	Middle	Creek	Twp.	

	
	
	
WOODSIDE	 	 	 				
	
Woodside	Gap	or	Village	of	Woodside,	and	Woodside	RR	Station	are	east	of	
Millersburg,	Pa.	north	of	Harrisburg	and	east	of	the	Sussquahanna	River.	
	
Sons	John	born	1789	and	Jonathan	born	1785,	Father’s	brother?	John	born1760	
March	9,	died	1835	Sept.	11,	of	Upper	Paxton	Twp.	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.	Father	James	
born	1725	and	mother	Margaretha	Trotter	



	
1777,	August,	private	in	Captain	Rutherford’s	Co.	of	Hanover	Twp.	sent	to	
Philadelphia.	
	
1779,	Sgt.	In	Captain	Weaver’s	Co.	
	
1780,	Ensign	in	7th	Company,	10th	Battalion.	
	
Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Somerset	County,	Pa.	
	
1788	first	tax	list?		
Paddytown	land	warrant?	
	
1790,	Census,	Jonathan	Woodside,	1	–	free	white	male	over	16	years,	1	–	free	white	
male	under	16	years,	and	2	free	white	females.	
	James	Rite	(sic)	
	
1792,		Tax	list,	Jonathan	Woodside	
	
1793,	land	warrant	
	
1793		Jonathan	Woodside,			James	Wright	
	
1794,		Jonathan	Woodside,	Whiskey	Rebel	
	
1796,		Jonathan	Woodside,	Wheelright,	175	acres.	35	clear	
														John	Wright		375a.			15	cl.	
	
1798		Fed.	Tax.		Jonathan	Woodsides,	2	cabins,	175	acres,		adjoins	James	Conner	
																															Henry	Crossen	adjoins	Woodside		
	
1799,					son	Jonathan	born	 	 	 	
	
1800,		Census,			Wright	?		4	Males		10	-16								1	Male		45+							
																															1	Female	to	10						1F	to	45		
	
																															Jonathan	Woodside,	Males	2	under	10,	1	–	17	to	26,	1	–	45	plus	
																															Female	27	to	45	
	
1801,		James	Wright			200a.		50	cl.		1h			3	cows		1	house	
	 Jonathan	Woodsides				175a.		35	cl.					2	cows				2	horses		cabin	
	 	 	 	 						99a.		10	cl.	
1802,		taxl.		Jonathan	Woodsides			267	a.				30cl.				3h					2c	
	
No	Woodsides	in	Addison	Twp.	on	tax	lists	
	



	
1807			Jonathan	Woodside	 282a.	 40cl.	 4h	 2c	 2	houses	
1808	 Jonathan	Woodside	 266a.	 35cl.	 4h	 1	cow	________	
1810	 Jonathan	Woodsides	266a.	 35cl.	 4h	 2c	
	
Not	listed	in	1810	Census.	
	
1809, Jonathan died July 8th  age 52, and was buried at the Paddytown- Younkin Cemetery 
 
.Jonathan WOODSIDE. Letters of Administration granted 21 Jul 1809 to John FLETCHER, Thomas KING, 
and Jane (x) WOODSIDE. Bond: (unclear). Sureties: David KING and James CLARK. Witnesses: John 
DRURY and H. M. BRACKENRIDGE [Breckenridge?].  
 
Is Jane sister to Thomas and David King? 
 
(Source: Somerset Co., Pa. Will and Administration Abstracts, Will Book #1, page 364)  
Reply Quote  
	
None	in	1810	Turkeyfoot	Census	
	
1814,		James	Wright,		19	Dec.	106	acres,			Surveyed		26	Jan.	1815		Turk.	Twp		
											(Paddytown	area)	
	
John	Woodside	may	have	been	apprenticed	as	a	Tailor	to	Bernard	Connelly	Sr.	
	
1820,		John	Woodside,					1	Male	to	10,	1	Male	26	to	45	
																																																		1	Female	to	10,	1	Female	17	to	26	
	
1821,		John	Woodside,		“Tailor”	50	acres,	4	cleared,	1	cow,		cabin	
	
1821,		Addison	Twp.		James	Wright			400	a.		70	cl.	
	
1821,	December	14th,	Jane	Woodside	Wright	died?	According	to	record	at	Pa.	
Archives	at	Harrisburg?	
	
1830,		John	Woodside,					2	Males	und	5,							1	Male		5	to	10,						1	Male	30	to	40,		
																																															2	Females	und	5,		1	Female		5	to	10,		2	Females		10	to	15,																						
1	Females	30	to	40	
	
	
	
	
1830	 John	Woodside				Tailor	 1	cow	 cabin	
	
1831,		James	Wright,		Addison	Twp.			399	acres,			10	cleared,				1	cow,			cabin	
	
1832			John	Woodsides										1	cow	
	



1833			John	Woodsides	 1	cow	
	
1835,		John	Woodside,			135	acres,			20	cleared,			2	cows				cabin	
1835			John	Woodsides	 1	cow????	Which	one?	
	
1836	 John	Woodsides	 135a.	 20cl.	 1h	 2c	 house	
	
1837		Turk.	Twp.	John	Woodsides	 135a.	 20cl.	 1h	 1c	 house	
	
	
1839,		Addison	Twp.		James	Wright,			399	acres,			30	cleared,			2	horses,		1	cow,			
cabin	
	
1839,		John	Woodside,		Tailor	,			67	acres,	40	cleared,	1	horse,		1	cow	
	
1840,	not	in	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Census	
	

Home in 1850: Western District, Ritchie, Virginia, USA 
Gender:  Female 

Family Number:  502 

Household Members:  

Name Age 
Jno Woodside  59 
Mary Woodside  55 
Jonathan Woodside  32 
Mary Woodside  22 
Sarah Woodside  19 
Rachel Woodside  17 
Elias Woodside  15 
Isaiah Woodside  11 
Ann C Woodside  8 

 

All	born	in	Pa.	except	Ann	who	was	born	in	West	Virginia.	
	
	
1841,		James	Wright	Add.	Twp.			400	a.		80	cl.		1	h.				1	c.				1	house	
	
1844,		James	Wright	Add.	Twp.			400	a.				2	horses					2	cows					1	house	
	
	I	think	John	the	Tailor	was	brother	to	Jonathan	F.	Woodside	1799	–	1845	of	Ohio	
	
John	Wright,		1739	–	1820		L.M.	pg.	six	and	seven		1960		pg.2488	“Pioneer	Ancestors”	
	
Patent	to	John	Wright	30	May	1788				376	acres	
Sold	to	John	Kenegy	(Miller)	&	wife	Dorothy			2	Aug.	1794	of	Leacock	Twp.	Lancaster	
Co.	
Sold	to	Francis	and	Margaret	Connelly,	6	Feb.	1796,		Caenarvon	Twp.	Berks	Co.		
	



1800,	12	May,		sold	92	acres	to	Jonathan	Woodsides	wife	Jane	
8		July	died	1809,	buried	at	Paddytown	Cem.	
	
1801,		Matthew	Pinkerton	of	Addison	Twp.	to	Benjamin	Pinkerton	of	Washington	Co.		
											Pa.	
	
1819,		John	Bayes	&	Nancy	
	 Jon.	F.	Woodside	witness	deed		7	Aug.	1800	
	
1822,	Aug.	15,	J.	Andrew	Wright	“his	mark”	of	Perry	Co.	Ohio	to	James	Wright	St.		
	 appts.	My	trusty	friend	Bernard	Connelly		?		400	acres	
	
1822,		Aug.	8,		Jonathan	F.	Woodside	to	James	Wright	Sen.	of	Perry	Co.		&	Eleanor	
	 	 of	Chillicothe	Ross	Co.	OH	
	
1822,		Dec.	14,		James	Wright	&	wife		Jane	(her	mark)	“formerly	Jane	Woodsides”	
	 to	Jonathan	F.	Woodside	(merchant)	Portsmouth	Ohio	
	
1822,		Sept.	6,		J.F.	W.	procured	mother’s	right	of	dower	with	present	husband	James				
																											Sr.	Wright	
	 “John	Wright	wife	Elizabeth	conveyed	to	John	Kenegy	2	Aug.	1794”	
	
1824,		January	20,	
	 Jonathan	F.	Woodside	to	Bernard	Connelly	
	 200	+	81	+	318	=	598	acres	Addison	Twp.	
					patents	12	March	1806	(1)?	,	March	1809,	18	Nov.	1816	
	
1823,		Nov.	4	
	 Jon.	F.	Woodside	&	Eleanor	(Bailey)	to	Bern	Jr.	
	 200	+	81	+	318		=598	acres			Add.	Twp.	

(1) ?	
(2) 	

	
Jane	lived	to	be	93	yrs.	died	at	Chillicothe,	Ohio	
	
1788,		Patent	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	to	John	Wright		30	May	1788,			376	acres.	
	
1794,		Sold	to	John	Kenegy	(Miller)	&	wife	Dorothy		2	Aug.	1794		Leacock	Twp.		
												Lancaster	Co.	
	
1796,		Sold	to	Francis	&	Margaret	Connelly		6	Feb.	1796	of	Caenarvon	Twp.	Berks	
County,	Pa.		
	
1800,		Sold	92	acres	to	Jonathan	Woodside	&	wife	Jane		12	May	1800	
	
1801,		Mathew	Pinkerton	of	Addison	Twp.	to	Benjamin	Pinkerton	of	Wash.	Co.	Pa.		



	
1819,		John	Bayes	&	wife	Nancy	(Jane	Wright)	deed	
	
1820,		Jonathan	F.	Woodside	witness	deed	7	Aug.	1820	
	
1822,		8	Aug.		Jonathan	F.	Woodside	to	James	Wright	Sr.	of	Perry	Co.	
	
1822,		18	Aug.		J.	Andrew	Wright	“his	mark”	of	Perry	Co.	Ohio	to	James	Wright	Sr.		
	
1822,		14	Dec.		James	Wright	&	wife	Jane	“her	mark”	formerly	Jane	Woodside	
	 	 to	Jonathan	E.	Woodside,	“merchant”,	Portsmouth,	Ohio	
	 	 								
1822,		6	Sept.			Jon.	F.	Woodside	procured	mother’s	right	to	dower	with	present	
																												husband	
	
	 “John	Wright	&	wife	Elizabeth	conveyed	to	John	Kenegy			2	Aug.	1794	
	
1824,		January	20	
	 Jonathan	F.	Woodside	to	Bernard	Connelly	
	 200	+	81	+	318	=	598	acres	Addison	Twp.	
	 patents	12	March	1806,	March	1809,	18	Nov.	1816	
	
1823,		Nov.	4	
	 Jon.	F.	Woodside	&	wife	Eleanor	to	Bern.	Jr.		
	 200	+	81	+	318	acres	Add.	Twp.	
	
	 Jane	lived	to	be	93	yrs.	at	Chillicothe,	Ohio	
	
p.	314,		Portrait	&	Bio.	Record	of	the	Scioto	Valley,	
	 re:	Jon.	Woodside	Rev.	War	
			 “His	discharge	was	preserved	as	a	precious	relic	by	the	Colonel’s	mother		
	 until	her	death	at	Chillicothe	at	the	great	age	of	93	–	Jane	Woodside	–	Wright	
	
Eldest	daughter	of	Jonathan	Jr.,	Jane	Isabella	Woodside	Clark		
1840	landscape	watercolor	as	art	student	
m.	11	Oct.	1849	Judge	Milton	Lee	Clark,	21	April	1817	–	1897		June	11	
studied	law	under	Jon.	F.	Woodside	
	
Marilyn	McKibbin	
	
John	BAYES	Sr.	son	of	Rev.	Jewell	Bayes		m.	Nancy	Jane	Wright	
Both	born	in	Somerset	Co.			John	d.	1846		Nancy	d.	1822	
	
Bayes	are	from	Middletown	Bucks	Co.	Pa.		
	
	



James	CONNER	
	
1780	tax	list	 	 100a.	 	 2	horses	
1781,	
1782	 400a.	 	 1	horse	
1783				Single,		 2	horses	 100a.	
1790	 	 2	white	males	16+,	one	under	16,	and	two	females	
1793		land	warrant	
1794		Whiskey	Rebel	
1796		present				
1797	 Tailor,	260a.	 	 2h	 	 2c	 	 1	cabin	
1798		Fed.	Tax,		 200a.		1	barn,	adjoins	John	Kilpatrick	and	Jonathan	Woodside	
1798	 State	tax	 Tailor	 	 89a.	 	 1h	 	 2c	 1	cabin	
	 	 	 	 	 200a.	
	 	 	 	 	 307a.	
1800	 	 males		17	to	26,	45+	
	 	 female	under	10,		29	to	45	
1802	 	 89a.		 30cl.		 1	house	 	 3h	 	 2	c	 	 200a.	
1805	 June	17	bought	13a.	next	to		69a.	from	Connellys	
1805	 	 69a.	 	 4h	 	 2c	 	 1	cabin	
1806	 	 69a.	 	 3h	 	 3c	 	 1	cabin	
1807	 	 69a.	 	 2h	 	 1c	 	 1	cabin	
	 												200a.	
1808	 	 		82a.	 	 3h	 	 2c	 	 1	cabin	
	 	 200a.														1780				100a.				2h	
	 	 	 											1781	
	 	 	 											1782			400a.				1h	 	
1810				U.S.	Census		not	listed	
	
1810,	Sold	land	82	acres	to	Jacob	Sanner,	April	14th.	
	
James	Connor	listed	as	Justice	of	the	Peace	with	Chauncey	Forward	as	witness	on	
the	Will	of	John	Kilpatrick	10	May	1819,	
J.P.	on	Rush	deed?	
	
1794,Whiskey	Rebel	
Rev.	War	Vet	Cpl.	20	Aug.	1776…..	
Daughter?	Margaret,	March	1806	–	1877,	married	William	Knight,	b.	1805	
Shown	on	1860	map	at	north	Upper	Turkeyfoot.		
	
	
Patrick	CONNER	 	 warranted	land	1810	
	
1780	 	 50a.	 	 2h	 	 1c	
1781	 	 Patrick	
1782	 	 Patrick	



1783	 	 300a.	
1790	 	 1M	16	+	 2	Females	
1796	 	 Patrick	
1798	 	 Direct	tax	 200a.	 1cabin,	 adjoins	John	Lightliter	
(also	adjoins	John	McLean	land)	
1797	 	 200a.	 	 25cl.	 	 1h	 	 2c	
1798	 	 200a.	 	 25cl.	 	 1h	 	 1c	
1799	 	 100a.	 	 23cl.	 	 1h	 	 1c	 	 cabin	
1800	 	 2M	45+	 1F	17	to	26	 cut	off	
1801	 	 100a.	 	 23cl.	 	 1h	 	 1c	 	 cabin	
1805	 	 200a.	 	 30cl.	 	 3h	 	 2c	 	 2	cabins	
	 	 200a.	
	 Patrick	Junior,	No	land	
1807	 	 100a.	 	 30cl.	 	 2h	 	 cabin	
	 	 100a.	
1810	 	 1M	und	10	 1M	45+	 1F	under	10	 1F	27	to	45	
1811	 	 95a.	 	 36cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	 	 105a.	 	 3cl.	
1813	 	 95a.	 	 36cl.	 	 2h	 	 3c	 	 cabin	
	 	 105a.	 	 5cl.	
1814	 	 200a.	 	 36cl.	 	 1h	 	 2c	 	 cabin		(not	
listed	after	this)	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
Daniel	McCARTY	
	
Married	1783	to	Anna	Amelia	Greathouse,	21	yrs.	old	(born	ca.	1762	at	Roxborough	
Phila.	Co.	Pa.	of	William	and	Barbara	Schuetz	Greathouse.	
	
Taxlists	
1780		(1st	one)	
1781		present	
1782	 160a.	 	 1h	 	 1c	
1783	 160a.	 	 2h	 	 1c	
1785	 160a.	
1788	 	
1790	 1m		16+						1f		16+			3m	und	16	
1798	 Fed.	Tax	list	 	 2f	
1802	 	 	 5h	 	 1c	
1797	 600a.	 two	lots	(Hanna?		Copp?)	
1798	 also	on	Georgetown,	Fayette	Co.	tax	list	
1810	 Amelia	head	of	household	
	 Georgetown,	Fayette	Co.	
1800	
1796	 Sawmill	
1798	 Sawmill	



	
(1823	land	deed	says	adjoined	on	west	side	of	Kilpatrick	land)	
	
Moved	in	1804	to	Georges	Twp.	Fayette	Col.		
	
1798,		Fed.	Tax			600a.			$700	value		 2	cabins		 1	dwelling			$32	value	
	 	 	 	 	 	 adjoins	John	Hammil	
	
John	McCarty,	1815		Som.	Co.	Hist.	pg.	560,	John	McCarty	advertisement		in	Somerset		
Whig,	business	of	fulling	and	dying	at	Drake’s	Mill	
	
Peter	Copp,	Sawmill	1801,	(took	over	McCarty’s	mill)		300	acres,	
On	1819	map	as	Copp’s	Mill	
	
John	McCarty	Judge	1847	Somerset	County,	Pa.	
	
1814	Charlotte	Ellen	McCARTY	born	June	18	to	John	and	Rachel	Hendrickson	
McCarty	(of	Levi	Hendrickson)	
1815		John	McCarty	carded	wool	of	Draketown,	moved	to	Berlin	by	1818	
John’s	father	was	William	(or	Daniel?)	
1835		Charlotte	Ellen	McCarty	married	Sept.	1	to	Thomas	PHILSON,	Somerset	Co.Pa.	
	
Associate	Judge	
John	McCartney	commissioned	1841	
	 	 	 “	 							1846	

		
	
William	McCLOUD	
	
1790	land	warrant	61	acres	,surveyed	20	April	1790	
1790	Census,					1	male	over	16,					1	male	und16,				1	female	
1796	
1797	 	 60	acres	
1798	Fed.	Tax		2	cabins		$35	value,	55a.		$130	value,			adjoins	John	McMillan	
1800	Census,	2	males	to	10,		1	male	to16,		1	male	26-45,		 2	females	to	10,			1	
female	to	16,		1	female		26	-45	(check	this?)	
1801	 	 1h	 	 2c	 	 cabin	 	 55a.	 	 6cl.	
1802	 	 1h	 	 2c	 50a.		8cl.	
1805	 	 1h	 	 1c	 cabin	 50a.	 15cl.	
1810			 	 tax	list		no	land				2h	 1c	
Not	in	1810	U.S.	census.	
Not	listed	in	tax	lists	of	1811,15,19,21,25,29	
	
	
John	HAMMELL,	
		



b.	ca.	1755	in	Pa.	wife	Catherine	
Children:		Jane,	Liddia,	Martha,	Margaret,	Mary,	Thomas,	John	possibly	Daniel	
John	Hammell	Jr.	m.	Margaret	Kilpatrick	of	John	
Thomas	Hammell	m.	Sarah	Lee	of	Ezekial	
John	Hammell	Sr.?	‘s	Will	before	1826	
The	name	is	Scot	and	means,	“active.”	
	
1788				tax	list	
1789	 Warranted	land	140a.	
	 Surveyed	1798	
1790	 1M	under	16	 1M	over	16	 5	females,	AND	ONE	SLAVE	
1796	 John	Hamble	(sic)	
1798	 Direct	tax	 200a.			1	cabin	house,		1	cabin	stable,			adjoins?	
1800	 Thomas	 M	17-26	yrs.	
	 John		 													3M	under	10,	 1M	45+,			3F	11	–	16,			rest	cut	off	
1801	 Thomas	
	 John	
	 John	Jr.	
1802	 John		 150a.	 30cl.	 2h	 2c	
1810	 Census	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		
														John,	John	Jr.	age	26	-44,	Thomas	
1811	 Thom.		 80a.	 25cl.	 2h	 1c	 cabin	
	 	 	 60a.	
	 John	Noland	 1h	 1c	
	 John	Jr.			no	land	 2h	 1c	
1815	 John	
	 John	Jr.									other	info.	cut	off	
1816	 April	2,	John	Hammell	Sr.	sold	64a.	of		210a.	patent	to	Thomas	Bayes	and	
	 Nancy	his	wife,	later	sold	12	Oct.	1819	to	Bernard	Connelly	
1818			present	
1819		 Not	on	tax	list	
1820	 Not	on	tax	list	
1820	 Not	in	census	at	Turk.	Twp.	
	
Try	to	contact	Denise	Schaeffer	for	more	on	Hammel			
See	info.	with	Lee	
	
	
Jehu	Brooke	JONES,	Colonel	
	
	b.	15	Feb.	1773	Somerset	Co.	Pa.	
d.	28	Sept.	1854	Perry	Co.	OH,	Somerset	Methodist	Cemetery	Reading	Twp.	
	
Jehu	was	son	of	David	Jones	Jr.	and	Mary	Brooke,	of	Wm.	&	Rachel	Kendall	of	
Montgomery	Co.	
David	Sr.	immigrated	from	Wales	



David	and	Mary	Brooke	were	married	at	New	Hanover	Lutheran	Church	of	
Montgomery	Co.	Pa.		5	January	1769	
David	Jones	Jr.	1793?,	ran	the	first	mill	in	Somerset	County	in	Milford	Twp.	
Jones	Mill	Run	at	Laurel	Hill	Park	Lake	today.	
He	was	a	Veteran	of	the	War	of	Independence.	
	
Colonel	Jehu	Brook	Jones	married	Jane	Kilpatrick	of	John	and	Jane	Eston	Kilpatrick	
Jehu	was	Colonel	of	the	10th	Regiment	of	Pa.	militia	
possibly	during	the	War	of	1812,	when	James	Hanna		
was	Major?	and	Robert	Philson	General	
	
1774	 Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list	David	
1775	 David	
1779	 David	
1794	 David	land	warrant	for	400	acres	Milford	Twp.	
1800	 Census	Jehu	
1810	 Census	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		Jehu	
1815	 Jehu	and	Jane	went	to	Perry	Co.	Ohio	
1830	 Census,	Reading	Twp.	Perry	Co.	Ohio	
1850	 Reading	Twp.	Perry	Co.	Ohio	
	
1817	 Jehu	was	elected	Reading	Township	trustee	Fairfield	Co.	Ohio	
	
Jehu	&	Jane’s	children	-		Mary,	David,	Nancy	Ann,	John,	Jesse,	Jane,	Jehu,	Sarah,	Josiah	
	
???	John?	B.	Jones	Somerset	County	Commissioner	elected	October	1812	
Jehu	?	
	

David	Jones	Jr.	1745	–	d.	abt.	1827	Adams	Co.	OH	
m.	Mary	BROOKE,	sister	of	Ann	Brooke	King	of	Wm.	1713-1763	
Warranted	land	1794,	Middle	Creek	Twp.	Sawmill		
Ch.	Elizabeth,	Col.	Jehu	Brooke,	John,	David,	Matthew,	Nancy	Ann,	Mary,	Eleanor	
	
John	Brooke	Jones	Warranted	land	Middle	Creek	Twp.	1784	
David	Jones	b.	1710	Wales,	m.	Eleanor	d.	1760,	Hanover	Twp.	Phila.	Co.	
Ch.	David	Jr.	John,	William,	Margaret,	Rachel,	Mary	

	
William	Jones,	Warranted	land	1785	Middle	Creek	Twp.	

	
	
	
Charles	DURNING,		the	Teacher?	
	 	
1796			Not	on	tax	list	
1797			warranted	land		200a.	
1798	 Direct	tax	 106a.	 cabin	house,		adjoins	John	Cunningham	



1800		Census	
	 1M		10	to	16	 	 1M	45+	
														1F	und	10	 	 1F	10	-16	 	 1F	17-26	 no	F	27-45		cutoff	
	
1801	 Charles	 	 100a.	 	 	 3cl.	
1805	 Charles	 	 200a.	 	 	 7cl.	 	 	 1	cow	
1808	 Charles		 	 100a.	 	 	 20cl.	 	 	 1	cow	
	 Edward	 	 100a.	 	 1	horse	
1810				Edward	 	 1M	17	-26	 	 cut	off	
1811	 Edward	 	 100a.	 	 	 25cl.	 	 1	horse,	cabin	
1813	 not	listed	
1815	 Edward		Durbin(sic)	100a.	 	 “Removed”	
1820	 none	
	
	
Andrew	Johnstone		A.K.A.	Amos	JOHNSTON	
	
The	Johnstones	immigrated	from	England	a	hundred	years	before	the	Rev.	War.		
There	was	also	Scot	and	Welsh	blood	in	them.		
Said	to	have	known	George	Washington,	shared	his	birthday	
born	in	New	Jersey	(1742-1841	One	person	claimed)	
22	Feb.	1732	–	d.	1837,	105	years	Reading		
married	Jane	Berger	10	May	1755		Readingtown,	N.J.	
(Nellie)	(Eleanor	on	deed)	Sophia	Ellen	Penelope	Johnston,	daughter	b.	ca.	1780	–	d.	
23	March	1871,	In	1805,	daughter	Penelope	married	Stoddard	Anderson,	She	was	a	
strong	member	of	the	Methodist	Church.	
Amos	had	a	son	Benjamin.	
Andrew	Johnston	was	First	Lieutenant	with	Capt.	Philip	Phillips	Co.	(from	
Maidenhead)	of	Col.	Joseph	Phillips	First	Regiment,	Hunterton	County	Militia	prior	
to	Sept.14,	1777	mustered	7	Oct.	1777,	served	under	Col.	Asher	Holmes	at	Mt.	
Pleasant,	Hunterton	County	March	17779.	DAR	Index	Vol.2	page	1601	
Amos	could	not	spell	his	name.	
Aesop	his	son,	said	during	the	Revolution	Amos	jumped	(escaped?)	from	an	English	
ship	and	swam	to	the	Jersey	shore	near	Elizabeth.		On	one	occasion	while	with	his	
brother	Ben,	they	had	the	perilous	duty	of	delivering	ammunition	to	the	American	
troops	hidden	in	nail	kegs.	The	ammunition	was	hidden	under	a	layer	of	nails.	On	
another	occasion	his	brother	Ben	was	putting	a	bar	up	on	a	gate	when	suddenly	a	
cannonball	shot	the	bar	out	of	his	hands!	
	
AMOS	JOHNSTON	–	124	acres,	called	“Peace”,	located	on	the	head	of	the	Little	Glade	
Branch	in	Turkeyfoot	Two.	Bedford	County,	adjoining	lands	of	Benjamin	CHEW	and	
Alexander	WILCOCKS,	
Esquires	“Elk	Glade”.		Alexander	(HUGE?)	(in	right	of	James	McMULLAN),	David	
(WORK’s?)	claim,	and	vacant	land.		Surveyed	03	Mar	1787	pursuant	to	a	warrant	
dated	13	Oct	1786.	(page	257)	



	
1778	–	1780,	Census	New	Jersey,	Amos	Johnston,	Upper	Freehold	Twp.	Monmouth	
County	
1779,	not	listed	on	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list	
1783		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list	Amos	Johnston	 100a.	 2	horses	 1	cattle
	 2	sheep	
1786			land	warranted	
1786		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list,	Amos	
1789		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list,	Amos	
1790		James	Jonston					1M	–	16	+			1M	under	16				4	Females	
1796		Amos	&	Wm.	
1798		Fed	tax	James	McMillan	adjoins	Amos	Johnston	
	 									Fred	Younkin	adjoins	Amos	Johnston	
1800	census	Amos	Johnstone	 1M	und	10,				1M	16	to	25,				1M	45	+	
	 	 	 	 2F	und10,						1F		16	to	25	(Polly)				1F		45+	
1801		Amos			124a.				40	cl.					1h						1c					cabin	
										Wm.				144a.					16cl.				Blacksmith						2cattle					cabin	
											Thom.	Tailor	
1805		Amos.				120a				30cl.		1h				2c					cabin	
										Joseph	
1806		Amos	sold	100	acres	under	warrant	
1807		Amos	sold	100	acres	under	warrant	
1807		Amos	sold	124a.	to	Fred	Younkin	
1810			Tobias					144a.						60cl.					2h						cabin	
											Isaac																			 												2h							2c							cabin	
										Wm.		Blacksmith					30a.					3cl.						3h								3c						no	cabin	
										 	 	 100a.		30cl.	
									Amos							100a.							20cl.						–	no	info.	–	
									Aesop					100a.								45cl.									1h										1c						cabin	
	
1810,	U.S,	census	Amos		45+yrs.	alone			Wm.		45+	yrs.				2M	16-26					4F	und10					2F	
10-16					1F			45+	
	
1811	 Isaac	 	 	 	 2h	 2c	
	 Amos	 100a.	 20cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	
	 Esop	 	30a.	 	8cl	 1h	 3c	 cabin	
	 Wm.	 200a.	 60cl.	
	 	 100a.		 60cl.	 Blacksmith	 cabin	
1815	 Amos	–	no	land	-			1	cow	 1	cabin	
	 Wm.	Blacksmith	 140a.	 50cl.	 2c	 cabin	
	 Tobias				100a.								40cl.					1h						1c					no	cabin	
	 Isaac					-	no	land	-							1h					1c				cabin	
	
1819	 Amos			-	no	land	-							1	cow					cabin	
	 Wm.				–	no	land	-					1	horse	 2	cows			no	cabin	



	 Wm.					150a.	 35cl.				–	no	info,	off	page	–	
	
1820	 Census	Amos				16	to	26	yrs.?	
	 											Wm.			45	
	
1821	 Wm.				–	no	land	-					2h	 2c	 cabin	
	 Isaac	 350a.	 5cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	 Wm.	single		Blacksmith	
						 *Could	be	more	end	of	page	
	
1825	 Wm.		–	no	land	-		1h	 2c	 house	
	
	
1829	 Widow	of	Wm.		 1	cow	 house		-	no	land	–	
	 Wm.	Blacksmith				-no	land		-								1h	1c	 cabin	
	
1830	 U.S.	census	 Wm.	40	to	50	
	 	 	 Isaac		M	20	to	30,		M	70	to	80	
	 	 	 	F	1	-		15	to	10					F	1-	15	–	20					F	1-		20	-30							F	1-		60	to	70	
	
1831	 Widow	of	Wm.	 1h	 1c							-	no	land	–	
	 Wm.		Blacksmith	 1h	 2c	 cabin	 -	no	land	–	
	 Isaac	 	 1h	 4c	 -	no	land	–	
	
1839	 Isaac	 250a.	 12cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
	 	 100a.	 14cl.	
	
1840	 Thomas	 Single	 20	to	30	
	 Isaac			M	30	to	40		 	 F	1	und	5,			1	-	5	to	10,				1	-	30	to	40	
	
1848	 No	Johnstons		Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
	
Stoddard	Moore	ANDERSON	
	
Born	about	1770	in	Lisburn,	Antrim,	Ireland,	United	Kingdom.		He	died	on	16	Jul	
1857	in	Mechanic,	Holmes	County,	Ohio,	United	States.	He	was	buried	in	Elliott	
Cemetery,	Mechanic	Township,	Holmes	County,	Ohio,	United	States..	Stoddard	
married	Sophia	Ellen	Penelope	JOHNSON	in	1808	in	Turkeyfoot	Township,	Somerset	
County,	Pennsylvania,	United	States.	
Sophia	Ellen	Penelope	JOHNSTON	(daughter	of	Amos	Johnston)	died	on	23	Aug	
1871	in	Birmingham,	Van	Buren	County,	Iowa,	United	States.			
	
On	land	deed	Stoddard	could	write	Eleanor	Johnston	could	not	write	
	



Not	on	1796	tax	list	or	before	
1798?	
1800		not	listed	
1810			Studard					1M	to	10,		1M		26	to45			(paper	cut	off	here)	 	
1814		15a.							1	cow					cabin	
1818		16a.				2cl.						3	cows						cabin	
1820			Stodart	 2M	to	10,	1M	to	16,		1M	26	to	45	
	 	 1F	to	10,		1F	to	16	(paper	cut	off	here)	
1820		taxl.			No	land			“Weaver”					1h					3c					cabin	
1821	taxl.									“														“													1h						1c					cabin	
1822						1a.				1a.cl.									“													1h						1c					cabin	
1823						100a.					4cl.			“Weaver”													1c					cabin	
1825							100a.				9cl.			“Weaver”													1c					cabin	
1825							sold	26a.	to	Bernard	Jr.	
Says	1810	deed	land	east	of	Fred	Younkin				Chew	&	Wilcox,	251a.		“Elk	Glade”	
	 													NE	of	Amos	Johnston		(later	Pringey	land?)	
1826							100a.			20cl.			“Weaver”			1h					1c					cabin	
1827							100a.			20cl.			“Weaver”												1c				cabin	
															200a.						8cl.																				1h					1c				cabin	
1829							100a.						8cl.			“Weaver”											1c					cabin	
															200a.					20cl.												no	cattle	or	horse	listed	
1830				not	in	U.S.	census	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1840		Thomas	Anderson	nol	land			1	cow				cabin	
Deed	says	Eleanor	his	wife	Turkeyfoot		26a.		adjoins		Wm.	Leech		Jos.	Brooke	Nicola	
of	(1825)	
Bern	Jr.	bought	land	of	Stothard	Anderson	recorded	4	Feb	1830				11			book	pg.	984	
	
	
Henry		CROSSEN,	(Irish	name)	
				
Henry	Sr.	1750-1826,	of	Milford	Twp.		
Henry	Jr.		1780-1845,	
	
1790	not	listed	in	Census	
1796	tax	list	Henry	
1798		Fed	tax	Henry,	100a.		adjoins	Woodside	
1800,	not	listed	in	Census	
1805		tax	list				Henry			200a.				 18cl.	
1807		tax	list				Henry		100a.		 18cl.	
1810		taxl	ist				George				single	
1810		not	listed	in	Census	
1820		not	listed	in	Census	
	
1825						David,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	 150a.	 30cl.	 1	horse	 4	cattle	 cabin	
1830							Census			David		30	to	40	



1830	Turk.	David	Crossen	etc.	
1832	Turk.	David	Crossin	etc	
1833	Turk.	David	Crossin	etc.	
	 (McNeal	place)	
	
1840				David		(listed	near	Alexander	Hanna	&	Bernard	Connelly	Jr.)	
	 2M		5	-10,							1M			10-15,					1M			20-30,				1M				40-50	
	 2F		und	5,	 1F			10-15,						1F			15-20						1F					20	-30					page	cut	off	here	
1848							DAVID,		Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1850						Census		Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	page	5	
																David			25yrs.		Joiner	
	 			Mary				20	
	 			DAVID,		59	yrs.		(b.1791)		Farmer,	Pa.	
	 			Susan			50	
				 			Elijah			20			Laborer	
	 			Elizabeth				17	
1850				AGRICULTURAL	CENSUS	
	 David	 70a.				improved,			121a.			unimproved	
(high)		$200.		Value	farm	implements	
	 3	horses	
	 10	milk	cows	
	 11	cattle	
	 26	sheep	
	 			8	pigs	
	
	
Joseph	BIGGS,		
	
Not	on	taxlists	for	1779,	1783	
1790		Census	Joseph	Beggs			1M	und	16					1M		over	16			2	Females	
1796		Joseph,	Weaver	
1798		Fed	tax,		Thomas,	1	cabinhouse	 75a.		adjoins	Joseph	
	 	 		Joseph,			1	cabinhouse	 75a.		adjoins		Thomas	
	 	 	 									1	cabin	
1799	 	Joseph	 75a.	 18cl.	 1h	 2c	 cabin	

Thomas	 75a.	 16cl.	 	 2c	
1800	 Land	Warranted,			263a.			1800	

Surveyed			1801	
1800				Census	
	 Thomas				2M	17-26,	 1F	under	10,			1F	17	to	26	
	 Joseph							M	45+,			no	females		up	to	45,			cutoff		at	mF	45+??	
1802	 Joseph,	WEAVER,	 48a.	 5cl.	 cow	
	 Thomas			 200a.	 20cl.	 1h	 1cow	
	 Says,	“for	Barney	Conley”	?????	
1805		 Joseph,	 50a.	 15cl.	 cabin	
	 Thomas	 48a.	 10cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	



1810	 Census	 	
														Joseph		1M		45+,		cutoff	
	 Thomas,	3M	und	10,	1M		27	to	45,			the	rest	cut	off	
1811	 Joseph,		 67a.	 20cl.	 2	cows		 cabin	
	
1813,	not	listed	
1814,	not	listed			?gone?	
	
John	Bayes,	on	land	1814	
Connelly,	on	land	1819	
George	Growall,	on	land	by	1837	
	
	
Jewel	(Stephen)	W.	BAYES	
	
	Born	circa	1733	–	died	1785	Somerset	Co.	Pa.	
Married	Nancy	McMillan	b.	ca.	1740	
Bayes	were	of	English	and	Scotch	descent	
	
John	was	an	enthusiastic	Methodist	who	admired	John	and	Charles	Wesley.		John	
Bayes	was	a	great	leader	of	the	church.	
	
Thomas	Bayes,	b.	30	April	1775,	d.	2	Sept.	1850	Fulton	Co.	OH	
Thomas’s	wife	was	Anna	Wright	sister	of	Nancy	Jane	(Agnes)	
Thomas	was	J.P.	in	Ohio	and	built	the	first	house	in	Wauseon	in	1835	
	
John	Bayes	b.	ca.	1779	Somerset	Co.	d.	1851	Wayne	Co.	OH	
(oldest	sibling	known	birth	date	1773???		in	Somerset	Co)	
John’s	first	wife	was	Nancy	Jane	(Agnes)	Wright		
b.	1771	April	d.	26	July	1821	Wayne	Co.	OH	
John	married	his	second	wife	8	Oct	1826	in	Somerset	Co.	
Jane	McMillan	b.	30	Dec.	1800	-	d.	1	March	1875	Wauseon,	Fulton	Co.	OH	
(She	was	first	married	to	Uriah	Stanton.)	
John	BAYES	Sr.	son	of	Rev.	Jewell	Bayes		m.	Nancy	Jane	Wright	
Both	born	in	Somerset	Co.			John	d.	1846		Nancy	d.	1822	
	
Bayes	are	from	Middletown	Bucks	Co.	Pa.		
	
1797	 Thomas	
1798	 Fed.	Tax	on	McMillan	land	
1800	 Census	John		
1802	 John		 40a.	 6cl.	 1h	 1c	
	 Thomas,	Blacksmith,	1	cow	
1810	 Census	John,	Thomas	
1811	 John		 100a.	 30cl.	
	 Thomas,		Blacksmith						250a.	 30cl.	



1815	 John	 116a.	 35cl.	
	 Thomas,	Blacksmith	 					250a.	 40cl.	 	
1816	 Connelly	bought	Bayes	land,	deed	recorded	12	Oct.	1819	
1818				Thomas	and	John	moved	to	Holmes	Co.	OH	
1818	 Andrew,	Shoemaker		80a.	 10cl.	
1819	 Andrew,	Shoemaker	80a.	 10cl.	
5	Nov.	1800	263	acres	warranted	to	Joseph	Biggs	
22	March	1805,	sold	to	Thomas	Bayes	
	
10	March	1815,	sold	to	Ezekial	Lee,	210	acres,	Warranted	by	Hector	McNeil,	25	
March	1786	
	
2	April	1816,	Mary	Lee	and	John	Hammel	Sr.	sold	part	of	64	acres	of	210a.	Hector	
McNeil	patent	to	Thomas	Bayes	and	Ann	his	wife	
	
25	May	1816,	to	John	Bayes	and	Nancy	his	wife	
12	Oct		1819,	John	Bayes	to	Bernard	Connelly	
Thence	to	Fred	Younkin	and	his	wife	Catherine?	Check	this	
	
Bounded	by;	
James	Cunningham,	 	 S	10o		E	 		122	perches	
Original	line	by	land	of	Joseph	Biggs,	N	76o	E					31p		N330	E			7p		N32		E	95p	
N	33o		E		7p			John	Bayes		claim,																								N	2		¾o					63p	
N32o			E	95p	
Fred.	Younkin	,	 	 	 N	78o			W		44p	
original	line										south																																										35p	
	 	 	 	 	 	 N77	¾o			W					to	beginning	
(John	Bayes	claim	was	old	Amos	Johnston	land)	
	
1832	Nov.	12th,	263	acres	plus	64	acres,	Biggs	warrant	plus	part	of	Hector	McNeal	
warrant	sold	to	Henry	L.	Holbrook,	from	Bernard	Connelly	and	wife	Elizabeth	signed	
with	her	mark	
	
1836	April	14th,	80	acres	of	Amos	Johnston	claim	sold	by	Bernard	Connelly	to	Henry	
L.	Holbrook	14	April	1836	
Hugh	Connelly	J.P.		
	
	
Daniel	B.	LEE	
	
Born	27	April	1811,	son	of	Alexander	Lee	of	County	Donegal,	Ireland	
1799	married	Martha	Hammell	
b.	4	Sept.	1775	–	d.	18	Oct.	1853	
	
1790?	
1800	 census		 Alex	



Turk.	Twp.		1808		Ezekial	Lee	 150a.	 30cl.	 1h	 2	cows				________	
1810	 census		 Ezekial	
1815	 census		 Ezekial	 150a.	 30cl.	
1820	 census		 none	
moved	to	Ohio	
Daniel	and	Martha’s	children:	Mary,	David,	Sarah,	John,	Martha,	James,	
	 	 	 	 				Thomas,	Ezekial,	and	William	
(Daniel’s	family	were	Presbyterians)	
To	Coshocton	County,	Ohio?	
	
1802	Ezekial	was	a	witness	for	(brother)	Daniel’s	citizenship	at	Somerset	Co.	Pa.	
?	Ez.	Lee	11	Aug.	1811	to	8	Feb.	1820??	
1814,	Bernard	Connelly	bought	Ezekial’s	land,	originally	Hector	McNeil	warrant	
1786	
	
7	Nov.	1814	 Ezekial	Lee	sold	land	to	Bernard	Connelly	
“whereon	he	liveth”	
adjoining	lands	of,	 John	Cunningham	
	 	 John	Bayes	
	 	 John	Clark	
	 	 Wm.	Newbold	and		
	 	 Rittenhouse	
	 	 Warranted	1786	
	
150	acres,	included	meadow	and	orchard	
From	original	tract	of	210	acres	of	Hector	McNeil	
	 Ezekial	signed	with	his	mark	
	 Jane	Yonkin	&	James	Connelly	witnesses	
	
	
19	January	1818	 Mary	Lee	(wife	of	Ezekial)	and	John	Hammell	Sr.	
Administrators	of	Ezekial	Lee	deceased	estate	
	
150	acres	of	210	acres	warranted	1786	Hector	McNeal	
	 see	drawing	I	made	matches	warrant	map		
	 only	change	in	boundary	John	Cunningham	to	James	Cunningham	
John	and	James	McMillan	
	 Mary	Lee	(her	mark)	
	 Thomas	Pinkerton	for	John	Hamell	Sr.		
	
13	March	1819	
Bernard	Connelly	and	wife	sold	150	acres	to	Jonathan	Harnet	of	Preston	Co.	Va.		
Elizabeth	Connelly	signed	with	her	mark.	
Witnesses	John	McMillan	and	James	Connelly	
	
	



John	Edward	BROOKE		b.	1804	d.	22	Nov.	1870		m.	Jane	Hanna,	26	Mar.	1837	
1840,	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1844,		John		233a.	50	cl.		2h,		5c,		house	Turk.	Twp.	
1848,	at	Upper	Turkeyfoot	
Moved	to	Ursina	stone	house	when	Brooke	Tunnel	built.	
1785,	William	Brooke	moved	from	York	County,	married	to	Rachel	Leech,		
early	settler	associated	with	the	Jersey	Settlement	
1796	tax	list,	John,	Jesse,	Robert	Brooke,		
Brooke	warranted	land	in	north	Paddytown	
Richard	was	tanner	of	Petersburg,	1811	-	216a.	1811	-	100a.	1813	-	215,	1815	-	
100a.	1824	tanner	
Widow	Brooke	150a.	1818,	Widow	1820,	Mary	Brooke	1830	
1837		Turk.		John	Brook	 215a.	 30cl.	 1	cow	 house	
	
	
	
PHILSON	
	
ROBERT PHILSON, (c. 1759 – July 25, 1831) was an Irish-American soldier and politician. 
Philson was born in County Donegal, Ulster, Ireland, and immigrated to Pennsylvania with his uncle John 
Fletcher. They kept a store in Berlin, Bedford County, Pennsylvania. Inn still exists today. 
 
Married	Judith	Lowry	1770	-	1853	
 
1782,	Served	in	the	Revolutionary	War	as	a	Sgt.	With	Capt.	Terr.	Campbell	of	
Cumberland	County	Pa.	
 
In 1794, Philson was arrested for his involvement in the Whiskey Rebellion. He was sent to Philadelphia 
for trial, but he and his co-defendant, Herman Husband, were acquitted.[1] 

 

In	1795	he	was	elected	to	the	State	legislature.	
	
Beginning	in	1800,	Philson	served	as	associate	judge	of	Somerset	County,	
Pennsylvania,	for	twenty	years.	
	
1819	–	1821,	also	served	as	a	one-term	congressman	during	the	16th	United	States	
Congress.	Member	of	the	U.S.	House	of	Representatives	
from	Pennsylvania's	8th	congressional	district	
	
Philson was commissioned a brigadier general of the Second Brigade, Tenth Division, Pennsylvania militia 
on May 9, 1800. During the War of 1812, he served as a brigadier general of the Second Brigade, Twelfth 
Division, Pennsylvania Volunteers. 
	
In	1794,	Philson	was	active	in	and	arrested	during	the	Whiskey	Rebellion.	He	raised	
a	"liberty	pole"	at	his	log	store	on	the	square,	and	advised	citizens	to	oppose	a	U.S.	
laws.	According	to	Wikipedia:	"The	farmers	who	resisted,	many	war	veterans,	
contended	that	they	were	fighting	for	the	principles	of	the	American	Revolution,	in	
particular	against	taxation	without	local	representation,	while	the	Federal	
government	maintained	the	taxes	were	the	legal	expression	of	the	taxation	powers	



of	Congress."	More	info	here:	http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Whiskey_Rebellion	
	
He	was	sent	to	Philadelphia	for	trial,	but	he	and	his	co-defendant,	Herman	Husband,	
were	acquitted.	
p.136,	Robert	Philson	erected	a	liberty	pole	in	front	of	his	house	and	a	whole	
regiment	was	sent	to	effect	his	capture	at	night	surrounding	his	house.	He	said	he’d	
be	down	after	he	put	on	his	pants.	Philson	was	the	only	arrest	at	Berlin.	When	they	
left	Berlin	Philson	was	riding	a	black	mare	of	his	own	and	when	they	stopped	at	the	
top	of	the	mountain	Philson	told	his	captors	that	if	they	would	give	him	a	good	stick	
two	foot	long	and	his	black	mare	he	would	whip	the	entire	party,	where	upon	he	
was	mounted	on	a	slow	horse	and	kept	under	a	strong	guard	all	the	way	to	
Philadelphia.	
	
1794	land	warrant	403	acres	next	to	John	Kilpatrick	at	Paddytown	of	Turkeyfoot	
Twp.	
1797	land	surveyed	403	acres	
not	on	tax	list	for	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	1800	through	1805,	and	1810	
1811	tax	list,	store	grist	and	sawmill,	2	houses,	4	cattle	
1815	tax	list	400	acres	3	cleared,	I	horse,	I	cow,	I	house	
1819	map	shows	forge	at	Iser’s	Creek	at	Casselman	River	
1821	400	acres,	forge	
1825	400	acres	
1829	not	listed	
	
1808	April	18th,	purchased	Turkeyfoot	land	412	acres	for	$3.21	from	William	Bell	
for	non	payment	of	taxes.	
	
1816,	Robert	Philson	was	part	of	a	committee	with	James	Hanna	to	organize	the	
Somerset	Academy	
	
 

DRURY,	 
 
	Warranted	land	east	of	Harnedsville	on	Casselman	River 
*	see	warranted	land	in	Add.	Twp.	on	map	along	Casselman	River 
 

							Michael	Drury		of	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	received	a	pension	for	lost	hearing	in	Rev.	 
		War	when	his	head	was	hurt.	He	belonged	to	Captain	Christy’s	Company. 

1796	 John,	tax	list	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	 
1800	 not	listed	in	Census	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	or	AddisonTwp. 
1801	 John,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	no	land	 
1802	 1	cow,	no	land 
1825	 John	Turk.	Twp.		 1	horse	 1	cow	 cabin 
1826	 John	 279	acres	 15	clear	____	______	_____ 
1829	 John	 279	a.	 40	clear,					1horse,	 2	cows,		 cabin 
1830	 not	listed	in	Census 



1834										John	listed	in	Estate	record	of	Matthew	Pinkerton	as	adjoining	his	land 
1835	 John	 200a. 
	 	 (Rose	place)	 400a.	 30cl.	 2	 2	 house	cabin 

							1836										Paddytown	Cem.	William,	son	of	John	Drury,	3	Jul.	1818	-	18	June																																																																																				
1																									1836,	17yrs.	7m.	18d. 

1839	 patent	Addison	Twp.	Cucumber	Creek	from	John	Hanna	1839	sold	
land					to	John	Hanna 
1840	 	 Census		John	(1M	und	5)	(1M5	und10)		(1M	10	und	15)	(1M	40	to	50)	

b.ca.1790-1800 
	 	 (1F	und	5)		(1F	und	10)	(1F	15	und20)		(?	Cut	off) 
	 listed	next	to	three	Blubaughs	and	Benjamin	Cramer 
1848	 not	listed	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp. 
1841	 John,	214	acres,	 70	clear,		1	horse,		1	cow,	1	house,		Turkeyfoot	Twp. 

							1841			John	and	James	Drury	were	indicted	as	counterfeiters	of	silver	coins 
1844	 No	Drury	listed	at	Turkeyfoot	Twp. 

 
	
Patrick	NELSON	
	
Married	Jane	MacMillen	of	James	and	Eleanor	Wright	
Possibly	the	sister	of	James	Sr.?	
	
1796				present	on	tax	list	
1800	 1M	under	10	 		1M10-16	 		1M	27-45	
	 2F	under	10	 		1F	27	to	45	
1802	 Weaver,	 100a.	 2cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	
1805	 100a.	 11cl.	 cabin	
1810	 1M	under	10	 			2M	10-16	 		2M	16	-26	 cut	off	here	
	
1811	 100a.	 18cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	
1819	 Patrick		 104a.	 20cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	
	 James	 	 no	land	
1820	 	Patrick	 1M	under	10,	 		1M	10-16,			1M	16	to	26,			1M	45+		cut	off	
Turkf.			James															3M	under	10.			1M	26	-45	
	 	John	 														1M		27	to	45	
not	on	1821	tax	list	
not	on	1825	tax	list	
1830			 not	on	census	
	
	
John	CLARK		
Not	listed	1779,	1783	or	1780			
1796	taxlist		
1799	Widow			 	 	 	
1801	Trish			
1814	tax	list	



Warranted	land	in	Paddytown	
	
	
William	MORGAN	
	
1774	 Felix	
1775	 Felix	
1776	 Felix	
1800			Wm.	
1801	 Wm.	 106a.	 50cl.	
1805	 Wm.		 144a.	 50cl.	
1810	 Wm.	
1811	 Wm.	 Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1817	 Wm.				witness	on	John	Kilpatrick’s	will	
1815	 Wm.	
1820	 Wm.	
1821	 Wm.	 200a.	 75cl.	
1829	 Wm.	 300a.	 60cl.	
1825	 Wm.	 300a.	 45cl.	
	
	
John	McCLEAN	
	
1789				John,	Warrant	land	at	Paddytown	
1790	 John,	Surveyor	
1790	 Census		Mary	
1796	 tax	list,		John,	Surveyor		(Sam	Blacksmith)	
1798	 Fed.	Tax,	John,	adjoining	Spencer,	Davis,	and	Kemp	
1802	 Addison	Twp.	John,	home	near	Petersburg	
	
1789,	warranted	Paddytown	land,	adjoined	Patrick	Conner	
	
1796	 John	McLean,	Surveyor	
	
1796	 Sam,		Blacksmith	
	
1798	 John	McClean,	land	adjoined	Thomas	Spencer,	Edw.	Kemp,	Nathan	Davis	
	
Brother	to	John?			Colonel	Alexander	of	Fayette	County		
												b.	1746	-1834,	Rev.	War	Vet.		Born	at	Marsh	Creek	York	Co.	
	 Father	William	b.1702,	Isle	of	Mull,	Scotland	
	 Mother	Elizabeth	Rule,	b.1709	
	
John	McClean		p.	1443		Rev.	Vet.	of		Turkeyfoot	Twp.		
	 5th	series	Vol.	IV,		page	411,		ra	–	state	archives@pa.gov	
	



Alex	Surveyor	in	Turkfoot	Twp.	
	
	
DWIRE,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
William	Dwire,	b.	1725	at	Ireland	or	Wales,	d.	before	1795	at	Somerset	County,	Pa.	
Married	Sarah	Ellis,	1730	–	1795,	at	Gloucester	County,	N.J.	of	Simeon	Ellis	and	
Sarah	Collins	
5	children;	Ellis,	Mary	Irwin,	Esther	Tolan,	Isaac	and	Shaphat	
Ellis	a	private	was	killed	while	a	soldier	in	the	War	for	Independence,	Capt.	George	
Rice’s	Company	under	General	Morgan	in	the	Virginia	Line	Eleventh	Regiment.	He	
died	at	the	house	of	George	Hooks,	in	Chester	County,	Pa.	about	1779.	100	acres	was	
issued	to	Shaphat	Dwire	for	his	brother	Ellis’s	service	on	6	Feb.	1834,	warrant	
#7389.	
Joseph	Dwire		of	Columbian,	Ohio,	the	son	of	Shaphat	Dwire	served	as	Atty.	
Exec.	Dept.	17	March	1832.	The	heirs	of	Ellis	Dwire	are	allowed	L.B.	for	three	years	
service	in	the	Continental	Line.	John	Floyd.	
	
Isaac	Dwire,	b.	23	March	1761,	d.	2	June	1851	Carroll	Co.	Ohio	
m.	Susanah	Ellis	
	
Shaphat	Dwire	Sr.,	b.	1772,	died	1838,	married	Rachel	Greer	
Will	written	21	March	1838,	while,	“sick	and	weak”	
Witness,	neighbor	Hugh	Connelly	
	
Shaphat	Dwire	Jr.	b.	16	April	1796,	Pa.	d.	12	July	1868,	Somerset	County,	Pa.	
Married	3	October	1820,	Catherine	Prinky,	by	Minister	John	Cox,	Jersey	Church	
Son	John	Pringey	Dwire	d.1921	
Son	Chauncey	b.	1830	(after	Chauncey	Forward)	
Daughter	Abigail	b.	1821	married	Elijah	Younkin	
Daughter	Ellen	b.	1823,	married	Joseph	William	Harrington,	Tailor	
Daughter	Martha	b.1825	–	1910	
Daughter	Harriet	McClintock	(Eston)	
William	Dwire	b.	ca.	1832,	Tailor	on	1850	census	
	
Shaphat	and	Catherine	were	early	members	of	the	Turkeyfoot	Disciples	
	
1784	tax	list	Shaphat?	
1790	tax	list	Shaphat?	
	
Shaphet	Jr.’s	wife	was	Catherine	Pringey	of	John	and	Abigail	b.	1798	
1840		land	adjoined	Bernard	Connelly	Jr.	at	Paddytown	area	
	
1772		William	Dwire,		150	acres,		10	clear,		1	horse,		4	cows.	
1773		William	Dwire,		150	acres,		10	clear,		Brothersvalley	Twp.	
1774		none	



1779	nonresident	landowner	Shaphet	Dwire	
1783	Isaac,	40	acres,	1	horse,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1784	Isaac,	1	horse	
1790	Isaac,	4	males	under	16,	1	male	over	16,	3	females	
1796	Isaac	
1798	?	
1799		Isaac,	100	acres,	52	clear,	2	horses,	3	cattle,	cabin	
1800		Isaac,		1	male	1	to	10,	1	male	to	16,	1	ale	to	26,	1	male	to	45,	1	female	to	10,		
	 2	females	to	26.	
1801		Isaac,		180	acres,		52	clear,		2	horses,		1	cow,		cabin.	
	
	 According	to	the	Draketown	book,	page	3,	Isaac	Dwire’s	land	adjoined	Oliver	
	 Drake,	Samuel	Skinner,	and	Charles	Hyatt,	in	the	Fairoaks,	area	west	of	the	
	 Jersey	Church.	
	
1811,	1815,	1819,	No	Dwire	in	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1822		Shaphet,		164	acres,		30	clear,		1	horse,		2	cows,	cabin.	
1825		Sheaf,								300	acres,		25	clear,		1	horse,		1	cow,		cabin.	
1826		Shapert,				324	acres,	20	clear,		1horse,			2	cows,		cabin,	
1829		Shaphat,			324	acres,	24	clear,	1	horse,		2	cows,		cabin.	
1830		Shaphat	Sr.,		1	male	10	to	15,		1	male	50	to	60,		1	female	30	to	40,			
											1	female	50	to	60	

Shaphat	Jr.		1	male	under	5,		1	male	30	to	40,		2	females	under	5,		2	females	
under	10,		1	female	30	to	40.	

1831		Shaphet,		108	acres,		4	clear,		1	horse,		2	cows,		cabin.	
	 Shaphet	Sr.			170	acres,		40	clear,		3	horses,		2	cows,		cabin.	
1832	Turk.	 Shaphat	Dwire	Jr.		 100a.	 30cl.	 1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 Shaphat	Sr.	 	 200a.	 40cl.	 1h	 2c	 house	
1834	Turk.	 Shaphat	Dwire	Jr.	 100a.	 30cl.	 2h	 2c	 cabin	
1835		Shafet,		118	acres,	20	clear,		1	horse,		2	cows,		cabin.	
	 Shafet	Sr.,		160	acres,		30	clear,		2	horses,		3	cows,		house.	
	
Will	#4		1838,	Shaphet	Dwire	Sr.	died	1838,	Turkeyfoot	Twp.,	(born	1772)		children	
listed;		Daniel,	Isaac,	Shaphet	Jr.,	Mary,	Hannah	Rhoads,	(married	to	Joshua	of	George,	
Milford	Twp.)	and	Joseph	deceased.	
	
1840		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 Shaphat,		1	male	under	5,	1	male	under	10,	1	male	10	to	15,	1male	40	to	50,	
	 1	female	under	5,	1	female	10	to	15,	1	female	15	to	20,	1	female	40	to	50.	
	 Isaac,		1	male	under	5,	1	male	under	10,	1	male	30	to	40,	1	female	under	5,	
	 2	females	under	10,	1	female	10	to	15,	2	females	15	to	20,	1	female	20	to	30	
	 1	female	40	to	50.	(listed	next	to	Frederick	Younkin)	
	 William	80	to	90	years,	at	Addison	Twp.	
1841,		Shaphet,		118	acres,		40	clear,		2	horses,		2	cows,		cabin.	
	 Isaac,		57	acres,		4	clear,	1	cow,	cabin.	
1844,		Shaphet,		78	acres,	2	horses,		3	cows,		house.	



	 Widow,		50	acres.	
1844,		Abigail	with	husband	Elijah	Younkin	moved	to	West	Liberty,	Iowa.	
	 	
	 A	Shaphet	Dwire	is	listed	as	the	first	store	keeper	among	Somerset	settlers	at	
	 Agency,	Iowa.	----Dwires	of		Ohio?	
1848		Shaphet	only	listed.		Upper	Turkeyfoot	
1850		William	listed	as	a	Tailor.		Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	b.	ca.	1832.	
	 Sheppard,	farmer,	b.	Ca.	1804.		Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 Agriculture	Record;		75	improved	acres,		68	unimproved	acres,		
	 $1,200.00	value	of	farm,	$20.00	value	of	farm	implements,		3	horses,	6	milch		

cows,		5	beef,		10	sheep,		13	pigs,		75	bushels	of	wheat,	120b.	of	rye,			
20b.	Indian	corn,		200b.	of	oats,		30lbs.	of	wool,		10b.	of	Irish	potatoes,	
52b.	of	buckwheat,		200	lbs	of	butter,		12	tons	of	hay,	1	lbs.	of	flax,	
1	lbs.	flaxseed,		100	lbs.	of	maple	sugar,	10	gallons	of	molasses.	

1860,		Shaphet,		64	yrs.		person	value	$100.00	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 wife	Catherine,	62	yrs.	
1868,		Remains	buried	at	Ross	Younkin	Farm	Cemetery.	
	 Shaphet		Jr.		died	7	mos.	12th	day,	1868,	aged	72	yrs.		2mos.	26	d.	(1796)	
	 Catherine	J.	died	7	mos.	2	days	1883,	aged	85	yrs.	5	mos.	(1798)	
1870		Chauncey	Dwire	40	yrs.	Personal	estate	value	$300.00	
1876		Bears	map	of	Somerset	Co.	shows	a	J.	(John?)	John	Pringey	Dywre	d.	1921	
	 Dwire	at	the	center	of	Dwire	District	in	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1880		Martha	aged	54,	b.	1826,	at	Ursina,	Somerset	Co.	
1893		Remains	buried	at	Paddytown	Cemetery,	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 Catherine	wife	of	C.	(Chauncey?)	names	for	Chauncey	Ford	of	Disciples	
	 of	Christ	d.	1	Sept.	1893,	aged	59	yrs.	6	mos.	11	days.	(b.1834).	
	 Harriet	b.	ca.	1820,	married	to	Eston	McClintock	of	Addison	Twp.	
	 (from	McClintock	records).	
	
	
Stewart	ROWEN	
	
Stewart	Rowan	died	May	1845				
Wife	Sarah	
Son	Perry			b.	1	Sept.		1825	
	 								d.	25	Aug.		1854	
	
James	Rowan,	1810-1880,	of	Addison	Twp.		m.	Catherine	Harbaugh	
	
Not	in	1790	census	
	
1798	 tax	list	
	 William,		John,		John	Jr.	
	
1800,	Addison	Twp.	 	
Wm.		27	to	45		



John	Sr.		45+	
John,	27	to	45	
	
1801				Stewart,		Single	
1805	 Stewart	
1810	 Stewart	
1811				William			AddisonTwp.	
1819				William,		Still	
1820				Census		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 John		45+	
	 Stewart			27	to	45	
1821				Stewart					285a.									60cl.							house										3c	
	 John												108a.									30cl.						cabin												2h						2c	
1830				Census,		Stewart	
	 M	1	(5-10)				3	(15-20)				1(20-30)				1	(50-60)	
	 F	1		(5-10)					1(10-15)				1(40-50)	
1831				Stewart,					284a.								100cl.					2h																	2c						house	
1831		Turkeyfoot	Disciple’s	Church	member	“Stewart	Rowan	and	wife”	
	
1840			Census		Stewart	
	 M		1	(15	-20)				1	(20-30)					1		(60-70)	
	 F			1	(15	-20)	 		1	(20-30)										(60	-70	cutoff)	
	
1841				Stewart,		Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	 219a.								130cl.							1h						1c			cabin	
	 392a.	 					130cl.							4h						5c				house	
	
	
1850			(Stewart)		Census	LOWER	Turkeyfoot	
	 Sarah					66						$2000	value	farm	
	 James				24							(Perry?)	
	
 
Edward	&	Joseph	LAFFERTY 
 
1790	 Edw				1M	16	+	yrs.	 1	Female 
	 James		1M	16	+	yrs.				1	Female 
1794				Joseph	warranted	land			155a.		east	of	the	McClintocks. 
1794				James		warranted	land	north	of	Petersburg. 
1796	 James 
1798	 Direct	tax,		Edw.		50	a.					cabin 
	 	 								Joseph			100a.				cabin 
1800		Addison	Twp.		Joseph			1M	und	10,	2M	10-16				2M	16-26				2F	und	10		1F	16-
26 
1805		not	listed	at	Addison	Twp. 
 



James	and	Joseph	Lafferty	moved	to	Connellsville,	Pa.	Joseph	died	there. 
James	was	born	1768	moved	to	southern	Ohio	and	died	there	in	1841. 
 
Patrick	Lafferty,	Pvt.	Capt	James	Murray’s	Co.		Col.	James	Burd?	4th	Battalion,	
Continental	Line,	Nov.	Dec.	1775,	Oath	of	Alleg.	Paxtang	Twp.	1778,Lancaster	Co. 
	
	
WILKINS 
 
At	some	point	the	Wilkins	moved	from	north	of	Petersburg	to	where	the	
McClintocks	lived.		 
Father?		Peter	Wilkens	1702-1748,	Will	exists	of	Lisburn	Road,	Cumberland	Co.	Pa. 
East	of	Carlisle,	1791	map	of	Pa.	 
 
Peter	Wilkens	Jr.	1748	–	1793,	of	Lancaster	Co.		Rev.	War	Vet	Continental	Line 
Married	Margaret	Mitchell	1765	Pa.	–	1817,	daughter	of	James	Mitchell	Rev.	War	Vet	 
b.	1719	Belfast,	Ire.	d.	1793	and	Eliz.	McClatchey,	b.	ca.	1724	Pa.	 
children:		James	Jr.,	Thomas,	John	b.	1766,	Lewis,	Sarah	McKinney	and	Margaret	
Wilkens		1765	-	1817 
	 
1.		Elizabeth	Wilkens	m.	Wm.	McClintock	had	11	children	 
2.		James	Wilkens	m.	Abigail		McClintock	of	Alex.	&	Mary	Eston 
3.	Rachel	Wilkens	m.	Robert	McClintock,	1782	–	1855 
 
1855,	Addison	Twp.	 Levi	drowned	in	the	Casselman	River	near	the	Ft.	Hill	crossing								 
Settled	about	1780	near	Petersburg. 
 
1783 
1792	 Peter	 	 100	acres 
1793	 Widow		 150	acres 
1793				Peter	died 
1796	 Margaret	 __________ 
1800			Margaret												_________ 
1801	 Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Wm.	 250	 30	 2	horses	 1	cow			 cabin 
1802			Widow	 180	acres	 30clear	 2	horses	 2	cows				house 
	 Wm.	(single) 
 
1805	 Widow					_____									_______	 	 1	horse	 1	cow									_______ 
	 Wm.		 				270	 	 30	 	 1	horse	 1	cow	 						________ 
	 James							____												______	 	 1	horse	 1	cow								________ 
 
1811	 Widow						______							________	 	 1	 	 1	 						cabin 
	 James						200														25	 	 1	 	 1	 						cabin 
 
1815	 James	 				200												30							 	 1	 	 1																	cabin 
	 			“	 				140	 										50	 	 ______	 	 _____	 						cabin 
	 Widow					Gristmill,	 	 	 ______	 	 _____	 	 _____ 



1817				Widow	Margaret	Mitchell	Wilkins	died	 
1819	 none	listed 
1821	 James	 	 140	 50	 1	 4	 house 
																	“	 	 231	 10	 2	 0	 2	houses 
 
1825	 James	 	 249	 50	 2	 2	 house 
 
1829	 none	listed 
 
1831	 James	 	 240	 40	 2	 2	 2	houses 
 
1839	 James	 	 238	 60	 2	 2	 cabin 
	 Wm.		 	 176	 30	 1	 2	 house 
	 Andrew	 		__________ 
 
1841	 James	 	 255	 80	 2	 3	 cabin 
	 Wm.	 	 170	 50	 1	 2	 house 
 
1844	 James	 	 250	 ____	 4	 3	 house 
	 Wm.	 	 170					______	 1	 2	 house 
	 Andrew	 (1	cow) 
	 John	 	 single 
	
	
James	WRIGHT	
		
born	1752,	in	County	Down,	Ireland	
had	10	sets	of	twins	and	23	children	with	his	first	wife	Jane	
arrived	to	America	with	his	father	Anthony’s	family	
	
1785	 arrived	to	Somerset	County	
1790	 census	
1793	 tax	list	
1801	 tax	list				200a.				50	cl.	
1805	 Addison	Twp.	James,	operated	a	Still	
	 Some	children	of	James	Sr.		
	 James	Jr.	1781	–	1858	
	 Thomas	b.	1784		m.	Margaret	Ankeny	
	 Andrew			b.	1785	
	 John	b.	1789	
	
James	Wright	married	widow	Jane	Woodside	after	1810	and	moved	to	Chillicothe,	
Ohio.	
	
Andrew	Wright	b.	1809,	Somerset	Co.		d.	1899	Perry	Co.	OH	
m.	Euphemia	Colborn	1817	–	1848	
son	of	this	Andrew,	Andrew	J.	Wright	b.	1799	of	New	Lexington	OH	



died	in	his	tent	on	Md.	Hts.	1865	of	160th	Ohio	Infantry.	
	
James	Wright	married	Margaret,	9	May	1757,	at	Dauphin	Co.	
(old	Lancaster	Co.	near	Harrisburg)	
1810		wife	Margaret	died	
1821		James	died	at	Paddytown	in	March	
children	of	James	Wright	and	Margaret	

1. Jane	Wright	who	married	BAYES?	
2. Jemima	who	married	William	Wharton	
3. Margaret	who	married	Richard	PINKERTON	1766	
4. Eleanor	20	Feb.	ca.	1735-1810	who	married	James	McMILLAN,	20	Aug.	1735	

-	March	1821,	of	Hanover	Twp.	Lancaster	Co.	Pa.	
Children:		Jane	b.	3	Sept	1772	married	Patrick	NELSON	
	 						Jonathan	or	John	married	Nancy	KILPATRICK	
	
	

John	McNAIR	
	
Born	in	Scotland	1740	–	died	26	Feb.	1800,	buried	at	Six	Poplar	Burying	Ground,	
Lower	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Somerset	County,	Pa.	
Served	in	the	American	Revolution,	1777	–	1781,	on	muster	roll	for	Captain	David	
Zeigler’s	Company	of	the	1st	Pa.	Regiment,	Colonel	James	Chambers,	for	the	month	
1780.	Pa.	in	the	Rev.	Hist.	Soc.	of	Pa.	Vol.	1	page	372.	Ancestry.com	DAR.		
Before	he	lived	in	Somerset	County	he	lived	near	Hamiltonban,	Pa.	a	border	area	
near	Frederick	Md.	
John	McNair’s	farm	was	located	in	an	area	between	the	Hog	Back	and	Harnedsville.		
In	1906	there	were	still	some	of	the	apple	trees	he	planted	growing	wild	in	the	
woods	where	his	farm	once	was.	
	
He	is	not	listed	in	the	tax	lists	of	1779,	1783,	1796,	
1797,	David	Mc	Aneer	
1798,	David	McNeer,	105a.		1	cabin	
												James	McNeer,	105a.	1	cabin,	adjoins	David	McNeer	
1800,	Robert,	James,	Samuel	
1801,	JOHN,	Single	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1805,	James	Robert,	JOHN,	Sam	
1810,	Widow,	James	Robert,	JOHN	
1811,	Widow	James	Robert,	
1815,	Widow,	James	Robert,	JOHN	
1840,	Sam	
	
Children:	William,	James,	David,	Robert,	John,	Ann	Harned,	Jane	Silbaugh,	and	
Catherine	
	
Ann	McNair	married	Edward	Harned	
	



Elizabeth	McNair,	1803	–	1834,	married	John	MC	Holliday	1803	–	1883,	of	Thomas	
Holliday,	b.	Scotland	1768	–	1854,	and	Elizabeth	Short	b.	Wales,	1765	–	1881.	
Their	daughter	Rachel	Holiday	was	Alexander	Hanna’s	second	wife.	
	
James	MITCHELL	
	
Get	more	details	in	Petersburg	booklet	
 
Born 1719, Belfast, Down, Ireland 
Death 15 Mar 1793, Somerset County, Pennsylvania   
Father: John Mitchell, Mother: Mary Argriff  
Moved to? Addison Twp. 1778 on taxlist 
 
Marriage(s) 
Elizabeth McClatchey, (bro? John warranted land 1788, NE of Somerfield) 
Killed by Indians 1755 – 1757, 
Children; 	
Margaret	Mitchell	m.	Peter	Wilkins	
Thomas	Mitchell,	b.1754	–	1824,	Rev.	War,	Pvt.	Bedford	County	Militia	
James	Mitchell	born	29	Nov	1754,	d.27	Oct	1827,	Capt.	Bedford	Co.	Militia	Rev.	War 
	
married	second	to	Elizabeth	McIlhenny,	at	Morristown	N.J.	1760	
Elizabeth	McIlhenny	was	born	at	of	New	Jersey	About	1739	.		
They	were	the	parents	of	3	children:	
John	Mitchell	born	27	Feb	1766.		
Sarah	Mitchell	born	Abt	1768.		
Lewis	Mitchell		
	
1794,	land	warranted	to	John	just	west	of	James	Wright	
	
County	Commissioner	John	Mitchell,	elected	Oct.	1808	
	

James	Mitchell	b.	1719	Ireland,	died	1775	
Ch.	James,	Thomas,	Lewis,	John	m.	Diana	Friend,	Sarah	m.	McKinney,	Margaret	m.	
Wilkens	
	
John	Mitchell,	Justice	of	Peace	1800	to	1829,	when	he	died	

	
From	Laurel	Mess.	May	’93	pg.	115,	
	
After	the	death	of	his	first	wife	he	moved	back	to	New	Jersey.	
Married	Elizabeth	McIlhenny	1760	them	moved	to	western	Cumberland	County	
About	1780	moved	to	the	Confluence	area	
James	and	Elizabeth	were	buried	at	Six	Poplars	Cemetery.	
John	the	father	of	James	b.1719	died	at	Frederick	Md.	1775.	
James	was	listed	as	the	administrator	of	John’s	will.	
Diana	Friend	d.1839	married	John	d.	1830,	



Daughter	of	Captain	Friend	and	Josepha	Drake	
John	and	Diana	moved	to	Newbury	tract	in	1812,	near	Petersburg	
Diana	was	born	1773	at	the	Turkeyfoot	Fort,	after	her	mother	in	alarm	had	hid	
and	slept	overnight	in	her	cornfield	till	she	heard	her	husband’s	voice	calling	in	
the	morning.	
	
John	and	Diana’s	children:	
Levi	went	to	Vicksburg	Miss.	and	lost	touch	with	him,	
James	at	six	choked	to	death	on	a	peach	pit	
Joseph	was	last	heard	of	at	Barbados	sick	
Mary	a	semi	invalid	married	Ralph	Thayer	
Diana	married	7	March	1833,	Moses	Ross	and	died	at	27,	with	two	children	
	

	
	
 
 
HERRINGTON,	of	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
Abigail	married	Levi	Mountain,	of	Joseph	and	Ellen,		
went	to	Ioway	same	year	as	Mountains	
(not	listed	in	1841)	
1844	widow,	163	acres		2h		2c		house,		
1844	Joseph,	single	freeman	
1848,	Joseph	Harrington,	TAILOR,	Upper	Turkeyfoot	
Apprentice	of	Barney	Connelly?	
Mary	mother	of	Bertha	was	Postmistress	at	Harnedsville	1920s?		
see 1936 article on Harnedsville 
	
George	RHEES-	Reese	is	a	Welsh	name	
Sold	lower	Humbert	bridge	site	to	Bernard	Connelly	in	1821.	
	
GOWER	–	Welsh	name.	married	a	McClintock	daughter	and	lived	among	the	
McClintocks	near	Fort	Hill.	
	
William	OGG,	
Ogg	is	an	unusual	Scot	name	from	Aberdeenshire,	means	“young”	in	gaelic	
	
Born	1764,	married	Catherine	Livengood,	1773	–	1841,	of	Peter,	a	Swiss	born	Rev.	
War	Vet	
Children:	
Ruth	born	1809,	married	Jacob	S.	Rush	of	Wm.	and	Sarah	Kilpatrick	
George	born	1811,	married	Lydia	Rush	born	1820,	moved	to	Iowa	
Peter	born	1813,	married	Elizabeth	Rush	born	1813,	moved	to	Iowa	
	
His	farm	was	east	of	where	Ursina	is	today	and	adjoined	the	south	side	of	Jacob	
Hartzel’s	land	which	adjoined	Peter	Livengood’s	land.	



	
On	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	tax	list	1785,	1796,	1798	Fed.	tax	list	
Wm.	in	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	Census	1800,	1810,	1820,	1830,	Allegh.	Co.	Md.	1840,	1850,	
and	at	Alamakee	Co.	Iowa,	1854	and	1856.	
	
William	TANNEHILL,		
	
Blacksmith	since	1812	of	Draketown	
Scot	name	in	Draketown	book	
William’s	land	sold	1819,	1818	
Son	Zachariah	moved	3	miles	north	of	Draketown	
	
MORROW	Vet	of	War	of	1812	
Paddytown	cem.	Benj.	DAVIS,	79yrs.	7m.	9d.	23March	1850	
	 	 	 	 				b.	ca.	1770	
Paddytown	cem.	Son	of	Rev.	John	B.	West	died	1841,		8	yrs	
Wife	died	1827	
Philip	SULLIVAN,	d.	18	March	1872,	56y.	1m.	1d.	b.1814	
Church	of	God	Cem.	at	Kingwood	wife	Rebecca	d.	1892	
J.	SULLIVAN	on	1876	map,	Tannery	north	edge	of	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
Robert	HARE	
	
Resident?	1820	–	1850	
Weaver?	
Taught	school	1829	
	1841	Turkeyfoot	Twp.		Robtert	Hare,	 			24a.	 			6cl.	 1h	 2c	 cabin	
	 	 	 	 	 “	 			87a.						6cl.			–	
1844		Robert	Hare	,						20a.							-									1h	 1c	 house	
	 	 	 “									“			 	 			40a.							-										
	 	 	 George			-												-	 			1h									1c	 house	
1848?	
1850	Census	Upper	Turkeyfoot	
both	Robert	and	Mary	born	ca.	1792	in	Ireland	
	
Charles	ROSE,	1819-1909							
1848	tax	list	w.	Catherine	Minerd	of	Sam	&	Sophia	Smith	
Andrew	Jackson	Rose			GAR	
Married	by	Benj.	Price	Bethel	Methodist	Church,	1858	
	
WHITE	 	 	
Christopher	warranted	land	1794	
Thomas,	warranted		land	1794	
1779	 John,	Richard	
1783	 John	
1790	 none	
1796			Vachel	



1798			Vachel	
	
		
LOOFBEROUGH,	Jonathan	and	John	Wade	
	
1779	 John	 	 50a.	
	 Jonathan	 50a.	
1783	 John	Wade,		Jonathan	
1790	 John,	Wade	
1796	 warranted	land	tax	list	John,	Wade	
1798	 Fed.	tax	 200a.			Jonathan	
1800	 Jonathan	45	years	plus	
1805	 not	listed	in	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
	
Jonathan	
born	1753	in	Henderton,	New	Jersey	
died	1837	Somerset,	Perry	Co.	Oh.	
married	Susanah	2nd	Barbara	Sheng	1819	
	
Served	as	Lieutenant	in	the	Continental	Army	with	Washington	and	was	wounded	in	
the	left	knee	at	Brandywine.		Served	from	New	Jersey.		
Among	new	recruits	of	Cumberland	Co.	Militia	1779	
Capt.	James	Young’s	Co.	Col.	Abrahan	Smith	8th	Batt.	3rd	class.	
	
Rev.	John	Wade	–	Baptist	minister	
born	28	April	1748	Perth	Amboy,	New	Jersey	
died	1814	Circleville,	Pickaway	Co.	Ohio	
wife	was	Mary	Haff	m.	1764	of	Ellis	and	Sarah	Champion	
Thomas	Huff	or	Haff	warranted	land	near	the	Loofberoughs	in	Somerset	Co.	Pa.	
	
Served	in	the	army	out	of	New	Jersey.	
Later	in	Capt.	James	Young’s	8th	Batt.	Col.	Abraham	Smith	
1778,	5th	Class,	Cumberland	Co.	Militia	
	
	
George	BRIGGS,	
		
b.ca.	1757	–	d.	17Feb.	1841,	at	84	years	
Wife		Elizabeth	b.	ca.	1765	–	d.	28	May	1848,	at	83	years	
Williams	Cemetery,	1½	miles	north	of	Kingwood	
	
Rev.	War	Vets	
	
	Wheelwrights	made	spinning	wheels	too	
	
George	served	in	the	War	of	Independence	as	a	Private	in	Tyrone?	Pa.	



Soldiers	of	the	Great	War	Volume	III,	Haulsee,	House,	Doyle,	1920.	
	
George’s	farm	was	passed	on	to	the	“granddaughter	of	my	sister”-	from	his	will	-	
Elizabeth	Leichtlighter	Williams,	1813	–	1874.	
1810	 George	
1811	 George	 205a.	
1813	 George	
1814				George	
1818	 George	 200a.	
1819	 George	
1820	 George	
1821	 George	 200a.	
1822	 George	 200a.	
1825	 George,	Anthony			Wheelwrights	
1826	 George,	Anthony	 200a.	
1827	 George,	Anthony	
1830	 George	
1831	 George	
1835	 George	
1840	 George	
1848	 widow 
	
	
Isaiah	STRAWN3	(Lancelot1,	Jacob2),	son	of	Jacob	and	Christiana		
(Pursell)	Strawn,	born	in	Strawntown,	Haycock	Township,	10	mo.	28,	1758,	died		
in	Florid	Township,	Putnam	County,	Illinois,	8	mo.	2,	1843. 

 
	He	entered	the		
Continental	service	in	the	fall	of	1777	as	a	teamster.	At	the	Battle	of		
Germantown,	seeing	one	of	his	neighbor’s	sons	in	the	ranks	fall	mortally		
wounded,	he	seized	his	musket	and	took	his	[page	537]	place	in	the	ranks.		
He	was	wounded	in	the	left	leg,	carrying	a	British	buckshot	in	that	member		
until	his	death. 
 
	He	was	disowned	by	Richland	Monthly	Meeting	1	mo.	17,	1782		
for	his	participation	in	the	war.	He	married,	8	mo.	12,	1781,	Rachel	Reed,		
daughter	of	Captain	John	Reed,	and	officer	in	the	Revolutionary	Army	from	New		
Jersey,	and	his	wife,	Thankful	Honawell,	and	sister	to	Jeremiah	Reed,	who		
married	his	sister	Jerusha.	Rachel	was	born	7	mo.	1,	1763,	and	died	4	mo.	2,		
1843.	Isaiah	had	learned	the	blacksmith	trade	and	followed	that	vocation	in		
Haycock	until	his	removal	with	his	family	to	Turkey	Foot	Township,	now	
Somerset		
County,	Pa.,	which	occurred	soon	after	his	marriage.	He	carried	on	his	trade		
in	Turkey	Foot	until	the	spring	of	1817	when	he	sold	out	and	moved	overland	to		
Knox	County,	Ohio,	and	located	on	a	farm	previously	purchased	where	the	town	
of	Martinsburg	now	stands.	It	was	then	a	primeval	forest	but	when	cultivated	



made	a	fine	farm	which	he	improved.	In	1837	he	sold	his	farm	and	removed	to	
Florida	Township,	Putnam	County,	Illinois,	and	purchased	a	finely	improved	
farm	adjoining	that	of	his	son	Jeremiah,	and	lived	thereon	until	his	death.	He	and		
his	wife	became	members	of	the	Methodist	Episcopal	Church	soon	after	their		
marriage,	and	their	family	were	reared	in	that	faith.	Hon.	Perry	A.	Armstrong,		
his	great-grandson,	says	of	him:Isaiah	Strawn	never	had	a	lawsuit	or	made	an	
active	enemy.	He	took	no	interest	in	local	politics	and	never	sought	or	held	an	
office	except	one	collector	of	taxes.	Too	generous	to	oppress	the	poor,	he	marked	
their	taxes	paid	upon	the	tax	roll	but	had	to	sell	a	whole	pen	full	of	his	fat	hogs	to	
make	up	the	shortage.	This	discouraged	all	further	office	holding.	His	lips	were		
never	stained	with	tobacco	nor	did	them	utter	profane	or	really	vulgar		
language.	Liquors	he	kept,	as	was	the	custom	in	those	days,	as	a	means	of		
showing	hospitality	to	visitors,	but	he	never	tasted	it	himself.	He	never	went		
in	debt.	Pay	as	you	go	was	his	favorite	maxim	and	rule	of	his	life.	What	he		
bought	he	paid	for	and	what	he	could	not	pay	for	he	did	not	buy	even	though	he		
might	need	it	ever	so	much.	No	man	ever	held	the	note	of	this	Isaiah	Strawn.	
	
Children	of	Isaiah	and	Rachel	(Reed)	Strawn:	
43Joel,	b.	7-131782;	d.	8-241864;	m.	1st,	Sarah	Tannehill;	2d,	Lydia	M.		
Chalfant	
44Mary,	b.	3-191785;	d.	4-241864;	m.	Mordecai	Chalfant	
45Elsie,	b.	11-241789;	d.	5-291874;	m.	Joseph	Armstrong	
46John,	b.	11-261791;	d.	7-4--1872;	m.	1st,	Mary	McClish;	2d,	Mary		
Haskins;	3d,	Ellen	Calvert	
47Jeremiah,	b.	8-7--1795;	d.	11-1--1883;	m.	Hannah	Bauscher	
48Jacob,	b.	5-311800;	d.	8-251865;	m.	1st,	Matilda	Green;	2d,	Phebe		
Gates	
[page	538]	
11.	JOB	STRAWN3	(Lancelot1,	Jacob2),	son	of	Jacob	and	Christiana		
(Pursell)	Strawn,	was	born	in	Haycock	10	mo.	12,	1760.	He	married	Mary	Cooper		
and	removed	to	Franklin	Township,	Fayette	County,	Pa.,	living	there	in	1810.		
They	later	removed	to	Indiana	where	he	died	in	1821.	Nothing	is	known	of	his		
descendants. 
 

Benjamin	Jennings,	Capt.	3rd	battalion	Pa.	Militia 
	 1758	–	1849 

	 farm	between	Ursina	and	Confluence 
	see	story	about	him	leaving	gun	behind 

	
 

John	S.	CRAMER,		
Born	Milford,	1800	–	1886,	of	Samuel	and	Rebecca	King	
Present	1848,	at	Upper	Turkeyfoot	Twp.	
1850	Ag.	Census				150	acres,		100	lbs.	of		Maple	Sugar	
Bethel	Methodist	Church	class	leader	
Buried	at	Mt.	Union	Cem.	



Son	Hiram	born	1833	
On	1876	map	at	Paddytown	
“SCHOOL	BUILT	ON	OR	NEAR	JOHN	CRAMER	FARM	IN	1820”,	-	from	Pa.	Dept.	of	
Instruction	article	
	
	
TRANSITION	OF	LAND	OWNERSHIP	
	
Daniel	McCarty	 			1797		2	lots	 600a	
Daniel	McCarty	taxlist	1798	last	time	
	
James	HANNA															1802		400a.	 30cl.	
	 	 															1805	
	 	 															1810	
	 	 															1811	
	 	 															1815	 400a.	 40cl.	
James	died	 															1819	
Thomas	married	 	1820	 400a.	 55cl.	
Thomas	 	 	1825	 400a.	 70cl.	
Alexander	 														1825	 380a.	 60cl.			(Wm.	Rush	land?)	
John	married?	
	
Laughlin	McNeil	 1835	 land	warrant	 402a.	
	
	
John	Kilpatrick	 1779		first	on	taxlist		
	 	 	 1794	 206a.	 warranted	land	
	 	 	 1796	 206a.	 patent	
plus	Philson	land?	 1797	 600a.	 50cl.	
	 																											1802	 200a.	 60cl.	 3	horses	 3	cows		 house	
	 	 	 1802	 400a.	
	 	 	 1805	 600a.	 60cl.	 3	h	 3	c	 h	
	 	 	 1810	 600a.	 70	cl.	 4	 2	 h	
	 	 	 1811	 600a.	 50cl.	 1	 2	 h	
	 	 	 1817	 will	written	
	 	 	 1819	 on	1819	map	
	 	 	 	 land	to	Wm.	Rush	–	1	½	acres	tanyard	to	J.K.McMillan	
	 	 	 1821	 wife	Jane	died	
	 	 	 1834	 John	died	
	 Wm.	Rush	 1821	 380a.	 60	cl.	 2h	 2c	 house	
	 	 	 	 		60	 10	
	 	 	 	 300	 	80	 	 	 house	
	 	 	 	 100	 10	 	 	 cabin	
Wm.	Rush	 	 1825	 380	 80	 3	 4	 	house	
Alex.	Hanna	 	 1825	 380a.	 60cl	
Alex.	 	 	 1829	 300a.	 50cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	



	 	 	 1830	 fight	
	 	 	 1831	 1	horse	 2	cows	
Alex?Not	in	1841,42,44	
	
	
Dan	McCarty	 	 1798	 Sawmill	moved	to	Georgetown	Fayette	co.	
John	COPP									 1801	 300	 Sawmill	
	 	 	 1802	
	 	 	 1805	 314	 6cl.	 Distillery	
	 	 	 1806	 314	 3cl.	 Mill	
	 	 	 1807	 314	 8cl.	 Miller	
	 	 	 1811	 John	 110	 40cl.		 1cow	
	 	 	 	 Peter	 300	 1	cow	
	 	 	 1813	 John	 110	 40	cl.	 1	h	 1	c	 house	
	 	 	 	 Peter	 300	
	 	 	 1814	 John		 100	 40	 1	h	 1	c	 house	
	 	 	 1815	 John	 100	 40	 	1h	 2	c	 house	
	 	 	 1816	 John	 100	 40	 1	h	 1	c	 house	
	 	 	 1817	 John	 100	 45	 1h	 2c	 house	
	 	 	 1818	 John	 100	 45	 2h	 2c	 1	
	 	 	 1819	 John	 100	 45	 1h	 4c	 cabin	
	 	 	 1819	 Copp	Mill	on	map	
	 	 	 1820	 John	 100	 40	 Distiller	 2h	 1c	 house	
	 	 	 1822	 John	 100	 40	 Distill	 	 2	 2		 1	
	 	 	 1825	 John	 100	 40	 Distill	 	 2	 1	 1	
	 	 	 1825	 Peter	 300	 20	 cabin	
	 	 	 1826	 Peter	 300	 10cl.	 1	cow	 	 cabin	
	 	 	 	 John	 100	 40	 still	 1h	 1c	house	

	 	 1827	 John	 100	 40	 1h	 1c	 house	
	 	 	 David	John_____________	
	 	 	 Peter	 300	 12cl.	 1	cow	 cabin	
	 	 1829	 John	 100	 60	 Distill.	
	 	 	 	 	 	 B.	Smith	1	h	 1c	house	
	 	 	 Peter	 250	 12cl.	 1h	 1c	 cabin	
	 	 1831	 John	 100	 60	 Distill	 1h	 1c	house	
	 	 	 Peter	 25	 12cl.	 1	cow	 cabin	
	 	 1835	 John	 110	 11cl.	 3h	 5c	 cabin	
	 	 	 Peter	 100	 14cl.	 1	cow	 cabin	
	

Copp	not	in	1798,	1800,	1810,	1820	census	
	
J.K.	McMillan	269	acres	warranted	land		in	1837	formerly	McCarty	–	Copp	lands	
	
Holbrook	m.	Connelly	 1841	 312a.	 60cl.	 3h.		 1c.		house		TurkTwp.	
	 	 	 	 See	1850	Ag.	Census	
	



Harned	 1841		Sam	 311a.	 121cl.	 _________________Turk	Twp.	
	 	 	 “	 374	 120	 _________________	
	 	 1844		Sam	 312	 ____________	2	h		 6c	 house	
	 	 	 “	 		49	 ____________	 ____________________	
	 	 	 “	 		30	 ____________							____________________	
	
Geo.	Briggs	 1844	 WIDOW	Briggs	 70a.	 2	cows	house	
	
Husband	 1841	 Turk.	Twp.	 	 	 	 house	
	 	 Herman	 27	 GRISTMILL	 2	horses	
	 	 	 	 59	 10	 	 7	cows	
	 	 	 	 210	 25	
	 	 	 	 211	 		5	
	 	 	 	 		15	 	
	 	 1844			Herman	
	 	 	 Isaac	 200a.	
	
	
1832	 Michael	Sanner	 100a.	 75cl.	 1h	 4c	 house	
	 													“	 	 216a.	
	 ?	?	of	Jas.	Moon	deed,		 1cow	 $200.	Promissory	note	
	
1836	 Michael	Sanner	 119a.	 100cl.	 1h	 2c	 house	
	 	 “	 	 200a.	
1830	
	 Michael	Sanner	Sr.	 100a.	 80cl.	 3h	 3c	 house	
	 	 some	wood							14a.	
	
Turk.	Twp.		1810	
	 Wm.	Rush	 370a.	 50cl.	 1h	 1c	
	 Wm.	Rush	 		60a.	
	
1836	Turk.	
	 Stewart	Rowan	 184a.	 100cl.	 2h	 3c	 house	
	 Stewart	Rowan	Jr.	 200a.	 	40cl.	 2h	 2c	 house	
	
1850	Census	
Holbrooke	has	expensive	cattle	
Brooke	had	lots	of	sheep	like	Knoblocks	today	
Check	to	see	Nancy	Johnson	widow	of	Johnston?	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	
	
	
	
	

	
	
		
	

	
													

	
	

	
	
	

	
	

	
	
	 	
		

	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	 	
		



	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
 

 
 
 
	 	 	 	  
 
	  
 

	
	
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	
	 	
	 	
	
	
	
	 	
	
	
	
	


